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Turnover was HK$2,244.9 million (2014: HK$2,037.7
million), up 10.2%

Gross profit margin was 14.9% (2014: 13.6%),

increased by 1.3 percentage points

Profit attributable to equity shareholders was HK$144.0
million (2014: HK$107.6 million), up 33.8%

Return on average equity’ was 25.4% (2014: 20.4%)

Basic earnings per share were HK114.13 cents (2014:
HK85.71 cents)

Final dividend of HK52.0 cents per share was proposed,
representing a payout ratio of 70.2%

Note 1. Return on average equity is defined as profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company against the average total equity at

the beginning and the end of the year
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Interim results announcement

R AR B < H A
Paid date of the interim dividend

EEREQH

Annual results announcement

EiEmERmnBF B
—-BERAFAE

—ERARHRE

Closure of register of members
— Annual general meeting

— Proposed final dividend

BREFAE

Annual general meeting

AHEARR SR A B HA
Payable date of the final dividend

—mFE+—A=ZTNA
28 November 2014

—E-NE+ZA=1H
30 December 2014

—RFNAZ+=H
23 June 2015

—hRFENLAEtAE=ZZE—RAFNAANAB
(@%%%W%)
—E—RFAAt+ANHE_Z—HRFAA+NH
(BEEEMX)

7 September 2015 to 9 September 2015
(both days inclusive)

16 September 2015 to 18 September 2015
(both days inclusive)

—ZE-hFNANE
9 September 2015

—RF+ANBsZA
On or before 6 October 2015

RREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the past financial year, the Group achieved encouraging
results, with turnover up by 10.2% to HK$2,244.9 million (2014:
HK$2,037.7 million). Gross profit margin rose to 14.9% (2014:
13.6%). Profit attributable to equity shareholders was HK$144.0
million (2014: HK$107.6 million), an increase of 33.8%. Earnings
per share were HK114.13 cents compared with HK85.71 cents for
the corresponding period of last year.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK52.0 cents
(2014: HK39.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March
2015. Together with the interim dividend of HK28.0 cents (2014:
HK23.0 cents) per share paid during the year, the total dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2015 amounts to HK80.0 cents
(2014: HK62.0 cents) per share, representing a total distribution
of approximately 70.2% of the Group's profit for the year.
The proposed final dividend will be paid on or before Tuesday,
6 October 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company at the close of business on
Friday, 18 September 2015.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong

The Group has sustained growth in our fast food restaurants,
supported by an increase of same store sales growth of
approximately 8%. Aggressive network expansion was also
undertaken. During the year under review, our new stores,
existing stores and specialty restaurants all performed well, with
satisfactory organic growth and profitability.

Fairwood focuses on our customers’ needs and ensure that they
are satisfied with the products we offer. In the past year, we have
refined our signature dishes and introduced innovative dishes like
Sizzling K-Pot and Egg White Omelette to enrich the menu and to
satisfy every palate. Both have enjoyed favourable responses from
customers throughout the year.
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AGORSRERRATE

In addition to satisfying our customers’ taste buds, it is also
our major concern on offering the best customer service. It is
imperative that our customers feel comfortable and happy when
dining in our stores; hence we take all customer feedback seriously
and try our very best to meet and exceed their expectations.
Moreover, store renovation and facilities enhancement have
been superbly completed, adding to the appeal associated with
the Fairwood name through a more inviting dining environment.
Such achievements have reinforced our network expansion efforts
and we expect the number of new stores to grow further in the
coming year.

The above-mentioned positive developments were supported
by the Group’s proven business model, which includes global
sourcing, a well-planned menu that caters to customers’ tastes,
flexible scheduling for staff, the SAP Enterprise Resources Planning
system as well as our efficient central food processing plant.
Consequently, we have been able to further improve food quality,
labour and operating costs as well as operation efficiency thus
leading to higher profitability.

mmmmﬁﬂi.-'-.---_




REFER  AEENPRRERMNITH O
RETEZENAE BRAREHREHRED
EmMREEREEZTIFE - ERRM
LREMHHEENEABREREME A&
BEZRFET —REXWR QB A0 5% A
MR R BIE T —TREREEHE -

HEREMNE  RMXERERRSER
RBRRE - BEEENRERE RALKHE
B SRR a0 A D B R R i B I SR
TEREF BERBELENRERLHE
BEARENEERFMHEE  RER
mMEEERREZHIE RmZE2HAK
BMLREZ -

AEEFNRAENREENEBER  F
o EEETHEI - REEZNBRER
RIOOMEIIRE  SETREXRREF - K
SEHERERHIELMRN TIERRE M
TIEER - REESRALNAESER

o ] A 1t

RERN AEBEPEAMNEREBM
RIT - [R5 E TR 1S 4912%HY IE [ 3%
- EBPBEREEHNRSER 2R
AARNEEBETEBRRIL T KEMNEZ
WHRRRMEBNEH - Z—7mE > K
SHEERERNMR BN TRBEEHOEE
NRASENEBERELE TN —Z -

In maintaining our growth, our central food processing plant has
played a vital role in providing quality products to shops day in
and day out and reduced the loading on local kitchen. Given the
complexity and large volume of ingredients and supplies, we have
engaged a professional logistic company to strengthen our supply
chain and introduced an incentive-driven management system.

In the food and beverage industry, food safety is the top priority
business risk factor. Hong Kong Productivity Council (“HKPC") had
conducted a compliance audit in our central food processing plant
as well as the stores in Hong Kong and Mainland China to raise
food safety level. Currently, HKPC is reviewing our production
process and supply chain to enhance our Food Safety Control
System and Audit Scheme. Food safety is dear to our heart.

While bolstering our business in Hong Kong, we have focused
even more on customer service communication skills training,
which have improved staff retention rate. The management has
also emphasized on happy working environment and happy
working team as solid foundation for happy dining experiences for
our customers.

Mainland China

The Group has recorded improvements in turnover with positive
same store sales growth of approximately 12% achieved during
the review year, though Mainland China recorded an operating
loss, the closure of underperforming stores in Northern China and
peripheral cities in Guangzhou being the key factor. On the other
hand, the collaboration with our food processing strategic partner
in Mainland China has been satisfactory, pathing the way to move
forward.
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Network

During the year under review, the Group opened 11 new fast
food stores in Hong Kong. As of 31 March 2015, the Group has a
total of 115 stores in operation in Hong Kong, including 109 fast
food stores and 6 specialty restaurants. In Mainland China, the
Group operates 14 stores.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate social responsibility (“CSR") is ingrained in Fairwood's
culture. We have continued to invest in the “Fairwood $4 Meal
Campaign”, raising public awareness of the difficulties that certain
segments of society are currently facing. Another campaign
that characterises the Group’s commitment to serving the
community is the “Fairwood Gives Warmth Campaign”, offering
complimentary glutinous rice with chicken and woollen socks to
the elderly. We will continue to devote significant time and energy
to develop more CSR campaigns and actively take part in various
initiatives for the betterment of society.

PROSPECTS

The next financial year will continue to be challenging for the
food and beverage sector. While rising cost is always a looming
concern, we remain cautiously optimistic about the outlook of
the industry in Hong Kong and Mainland China, where both
markets continue to present opportunities for those with foresight
and that are well-prepared. In line with this, we will introduce a
new concept restaurant that will offer a new range of cuisine to
customers in the following financial year.
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While exploring fresh opportunities, we are also well aware of
the need to consolidate our position in existing markets through
continuous efforts to improve the quality of our food and services
by offering more personalised service such as customer-based
food taste and rice portion.

The management has duly established its own set of solutions
that it trusts will allow Fairwood to sustain satisfactory growth.
Embracing the “Enjoy Great Food. Live a Great Life!” mission,
Fairwood will continue to improve its heart-warming services to
promote goodwill with its customers in the coming year.

APPRECIATION

At this time, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the
management team and the entire Fairwood workforce for their
commitment and diligence during the past year. | wish to also
offer my appreciation to our customers who come from all walks
of life for their loyal support. Further, all of our shareholders and
business partners must be commended for their unwavering trust
and confidence in the Group.

£\ O
ERB
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HITERE

Executive Chairman

EE —_E-hFAAZ+=H
Hong Kong, 23 June 2015
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 March 2015, total assets of the Group were HK$982.1
million (2014: HK$887.9 million). The Group's working capital
was HK$217.5 million (2014: HK$127.4 million), represented
by total current assets of HK$537.4 million (2014: HK$421.2
million) against total current liabilities of HK$319.9 million (2014:
HK$293.8 million). Current ratio, being the proportion of total
current assets against total current liabilities, was 1.7 (2014: 1.4).
Total equity was HK$600.2 million (2014: HK$535.3 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash
flows and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2015, the
Group had bank deposits and cash amounting to HK$419.0
million (2014: HK$326.1 million), representing an increase
of 28.5% from 2014. Most bank deposits and cash were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
Renminbi.

At 31 March 2015, the Group had total bank loans of HK$11.0
million (2014: HK$20.9 million) denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. All of the Group’s bank borrowings were subject to the
floating rate basis and the maturity of borrowings are up to 2019.
The unutilised banking facilities were HK$258.7 million (2014:
HK$276.3 million). The gearing ratio of the Group dropped to
1.8% (2014: 3.9%), which was calculated based on the total bank
loans over total equity.

PROFITABILITY

Return on average equity was 25.4% (2014: 20.4%), being profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company against the
average total equity at the beginning and the end of the year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, the capital expenditure was approximately
HK$104.0 million (2014: HK$78.3 million), which was mainly used
for renovation works for new and existing shops and the increase
was due to more stores opened compared to last year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the fluctuation
in exchange rate is immaterial to the Group's financial position.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
cash at bank and other financial assets that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. As Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to United States dollar, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong Kong
dollar exchange rate. The Group ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short term imbalances.

For the purpose of offsetting the exposure of the interest rate
fluctuation, the Group had entered a forward interest rate swap
with a financial institution. The swap was arranged to match
the maturity of the repayment schedule of a bank loan with the
maturity over the next 1.5 years and had the fixed swap rate of
2.74%.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 March 2015, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of
the Group amounted to HK$1.6 million (2014: HK$45.5 million)
and no bank deposits and cash was used to pledge any loans or
banking facilities.

COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2015
were HK$25.4 million (2014: HK$31.0 million). Included in capital
commitment outstanding at 31 March 2014 was an amount of
HK$7.9 million for the future development of the central food
processing plant and no capital commitment was outstanding at
31 March 2015 for such purpose.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2015, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking facilities
extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under the guarantee arrangement. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period under
the guarantee is the amount of the facilities drawn down by
all the subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantees, being
HK$71.9 million (2014: HK$82.1 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably measured and
there is no transaction price.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

At 31 March 2015, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 4,500 (2014: 4,600). Staff costs for the year
were approximately HK$658.2 million (2014: HK$572.7 million).
Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job nature,
qualifications and experience. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed annually based on performance appraisals and other
relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration
packages, share options and bonus to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and the individual employees. Also, the
Group has committed to provide related training programme to
improve the quality, competence and skills of all staff.
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CEO’S FOREWORD

We believe that customers and people should always come
first."Enjoy Great Food. Live a Great Life!” is our mission. We
listen to customers’ needs and closely follow dining trends to
provide innovative products, while continuously enhancing the
quality of our food and keeping prices attractive. With heartfelt
service and convenient locations, we are committed to providing
enjoyable dining experiences to our customers.

During the reporting period, we have launched a series of new
"Silver Hair” campaigns, among others, the introduction of
Fairwood “Care for Seniors” card, making facilities modifications
to restaurant outlets and initiating meals delivery services. We
believe that this is our way of offering respect and expressing
gratitude to the elderly for their invaluable contributions made to
the society. We have also established the Culture Development
Task Force to focus on cultivating a “Happy Team” culture in
the Group. We trust that it is paramount to foster a happy and
nurturing culture within Fairwood, so as to build a happy working
team which will translate into a happy dining experience for our
customers.

This is our first Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report which covers the significant efforts that we have put into
promoting food safety, enhancing customer services, investing in
our people, contributing to the communities, and also protecting
our environment relating to our Hong Kong operations. In this
report, we provide an outline of our sustainability performance for
the year ended 31 March 2015 and set out our targets and action
plan for the future.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our people for their
contribution and support to our business and various charitable
activities during the year. Through enhancing our governance and
inspiring our people on sustainable development, | am confident
that we can focus our efforts on the areas of concern to our
stakeholders and create a long-lasting and strong impact to our
society.

Chan Chee Shing
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 23 June 2015
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BACKGROUND

About Fairwood

As one of the leading fast food chains in
Hong Kong, Fairwood Holdings Limited
(“Fairwood” or “the Group”) (stock
code: 52) is dedicated to offering the
highest quality products and service to its
customers in a modern and comfortable
environment. Co-founded by Mr Lo Fong
Seong and Mr Lo Hoi Fook in 1972, our
corporate mission is to “Enjoy Great
Food. Live a Great Life!”. The Group
believes that people and customers
should always come first.

The first “Fairwood” restaurant was
established on Chung On Street,
Tsuen Wan, in 1972. The central food
processing plant was later established in
1981 to ensure consistent food quality
and improve efficiency. Our listing on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in October
1991 has provided us with a platform
for further development and expansion. In 2003, we launched
a re-branding campaign during which not only the brand image
of Fairwood was revamped, but an overall improvement in
product and service quality was achieved. More advanced and
systematic operation and management practices, as well as
more comprehensive employee engagement programs were also
implemented.

Over the years, the Group has been expanding its restaurant
network progressively and is currently operating approximately
130 outlets, including fast food and specialty restaurants, in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Since 2010, the Group started
to implement energy conservation program which marks the
beginning of its sustainable development pathway. Since
then, the Group has been continuously striving to improve its
environmental, social and governance attributes.
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Our Stakeholders

Our stakeholders stand with us on the roadmap of sustainability.
They are those who are interested in or affected by our
activities and the way we conduct our business. \We engage our
stakeholders through various channels, including, but not limited
to, regular communications, face-to-face meetings, seminars and
training sessions.

B EE5 SHERE BEINER

Stakeholder Group Engagement Channel Our Focus

BR/REE » AFERERES » BBRRA
Shareholders/Investors Annual general meeting and notices Financial performance

» FEREG  UBHRNLE » EBAUREER
Annual reports, financial statements Business sustainability
and announcements » HHENRBERER
» HEAR Recognition of investment in community
Direct communications » RAEHE
» NEAE Corporate transparency
Corporate website
» REEG®
Investor briefings
BE » RAME » FERMEENRMNRSE
Customers Corporate website Offering consistent and high quality

BT .
Employees

FRAFETERABIGEE
Direct contact via frontline staff
to collect feedback

RAREE

Mass media

FAIRAZ

Training sessions

T TEREEME S

Work-life-balance activities

BEPREDY

Charitable initiatives
EHBERER

Periodic performance appraisals

= w}tiﬁ]ﬁ 188

Meetings and close communications

AT
Newsletters

products and services
RUKHTENAERE

Providing a modern and comfortable
environment

EmEE

Food safety
RETREENHRE M

Providing trendy food choices

By —X%[REEH ]

Building a happy team
PETEREBEERERER
Striving for self-improvement and
advancement
REFR R AR [ 3R
Maintaining a sustainable return
in the long run

BEMEETH

Integrity and business conduct
AR AR 3 R SRR

Sustainable development strategy
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K0 EER BHRE BEINER
Stakeholder Group Engagement Channel Our Focus
NHHEE » BEAR » BERET
Public bodies Telephone calls Policy implementation
» BEER r XBERRBNMEERR
Direct communications Business strategy and performance
» REUE v EHMERMEBRECE
Ongoing dialogue Local regulations and actual practices
» HREH » BHERERE
Face-to-face meetings Business ethics
» BRENGELR
Responsible corporate citizen
1TRAR » e RIES  RAfTRE AR

Industry associations Seminars and workshops

» 2HEFEEHR

Annual meeting participation
v TERERES

Industry forum and summit

e - B
Media Interviews
» FREHW
Media briefings
»  DEABEL
Corporate website
» HEENE

Press conference

Technical competence and experience
BHERNRETR

Local regulations and best practices
EBAIREER

Business sustainability

CREE

Corporate reputation

i EIRE)

Branding activities
AREERRET SR
Sustainable development with
contribution to the society

IR v BEER K% » BXREE
Suppliers Site visits and appraisals Corporate reputation
» BYER » REARME
Close communications Environmental responsibility
r TREBRMBRME
Industry experience and expertise
» RERENEERM
Sourcing for safe and high quality food
» AIREERERNRE
Sustainable procurement
RREEEERAF

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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We shall continue to engage each stakeholder and build better
relationships so that we can stay focused on our priorities. During
the reporting period, we have four task forces as listed below to

ERNEREES - maintain dialogues with our stakeholders.
THARREE B
Chief Executive Officer and Management Team
BY=2 ANBR XL BER ITHERRRS
55/ 48 5/ 48 54 E5/)4
Food Safety People Development Culture Development Workplace Safety
Task Force Task Force Task Force Task Force
RAXEERY Z2RORsMBR(HBE - | BY—XBEAIREX | RAEEEIRMHR
ZERIREE B R%E - RNE | INEK FHTERR

Bh)BRKA— X B &
£ BEENMRENHE
B

I

To increase the food
safety consciousness of
the Group

To provide a safety
workplace to employee
of the Group

To build a team with
happy culture

To develop a committed,
competent and happy
team with consideration
of 5Rs(recruitment,
retention, recreation,
recognition and reward)

REEP-HAUBBEERNTHRERR
Y —ERFEMEBEREE
RRBEFREEFE - BNERSAREER
B odHeakEaSHEBEANESRMERREK
EER  NIREB THIRIREM

One of our initiatives in the sustainability targets and actions for
the coming year is to establish a new task force in “Environmental
Protection and Energy Saving” to address the environmental
protection issues. The objective is to enhance Fairwood's
compliance and best practice in environmental, social and
governance areas and to improve our employees’ awareness on
environmental protection.

R EFT R
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MATERIALITY MATRIX

The issues that matter most to our business and our stakeholders
are identified and presented in the materiality matrix. Among
them, we rate food quality and safety, customer engagement and
experience as being of top concerns to our external stakeholders,
weighted against the risk and opportunities to us.

As this is our first ESG report, we have conducted a thorough
materiality analysis in 2014/2015 to help us identify issues that
may be of interest to our stakeholders on one hand and to identify
our focus and resource allocation on the other.

In the coming years, we will give significant consideration and
effort to handle issues which are viewed as material and will, for
certain, move forward on the roadmap to sustainability through
alignment of our business objectives and vision.

The following issues are rated as material to our stakeholders:

2 24
Ranking HI1F Issues
1 RYMEREZSE Food quality and safety
2 BER2HKE% Customer engagement and experience
3 BIMEEENITR Values and behavior of our people
4 H BP9 1R A IR Investing in our community
5 RIGIRE Environmental protection
KIREEEERAF

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting Period

This report covers the financial year from 1 April 2014 to 31
March 2015.

Reporting Scope

As this is our first ESG report, only the operations of fast food
restaurants office and central food processing plant in Hong Kong
are covered.

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide

The Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide,
with an aim to increase transparency in listed companies’ ESG
performance, is set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Group follows this Guide on
a voluntary basis and demonstrates its commitment to meeting
stakeholders’ expectations.

Reliability and Completeness

The content of the report is based on the material aspects of our
Group and our stakeholders, and is directly linked to our Group’s
business objectives and strategies.

We have gathered all relevant data and information from the
financial and operational teams and have presented them in this
report to the best of our knowledge, in good faith and due care.
We will continue to improve our reporting system in 2015/2016
and strengthen this process.

Your Feedback

We welcome stakeholders’ feedback on our environmental, social
and governance approach and performance. Please share your
views with us via email at esg@fairwood.com.hk.
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FOOD QUALITY AND SAFETY

Food quality and safety is ranked most important in the materiality
matrix. In terms of sustainability, food safety and fast food
business reputation are inter-related.

Central Food Processing Plant

Mechanisation of food preparation

Fairwood’s central food processing plant is the centralised
mechanism to control over the quality and quantity of raw
materials and ingredients to maintain standardised and consistent
recipes. Mechanised equipment is utilised to enhance the
efficiency of food preparation and minimise the lifting and heavy
work of the frontline staff. Raw and cooked food preparation and
processing, ingredient room and master cooking area are clearly
identified and separated to ensure food safety and avoid cross
contamination.

Food quality control

Central food processing plant provides the opportunity of better
quality control in the food served, including standardised product
quality throughout Fairwood chain.

Multiple control points are established and Critical Control
Point (CCP) plans and procedures are in place allowing Quality
Assurance Department to monitor and rectify problems, if any.
Cross-discipline operation and review meetings are organised
periodically to discuss about food safety issues and to devise
appropriate measures and policies on these aspects.

A liquid nitrogen blast freezer is used in the central food
processing plant for freezing food items quickly to ensure food
conservation. In addition to reducing the steps in cooling the food,
the freezer also allows for preservation of food nutrients, and
minimises the likelihood of food contamination. This is achieved
by inhibiting bacterial growth in extremely low temperature.
The equipment safeguards food safety and reduces the risk to
consumers.
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FOOD QUALITY AND SAFETY (continued)

Inventory control

Inventory control processes are in place to ensure that food is
issued in appropriate quantities and there is good inventory
turnover so that spoilage does not occur and food quality
is maintained. Good fiscal management is achieved while
maintaining a “just-in-time” inventory.

Restaurant Outlets

In order to ensure that the food served is safe and complies with
our quality standard, regular evaluation of product quality is
performed on raw materials, food ingredients and final products.
The Group’s Quality Assurance Department and Group Purchasing
Department collect samples randomly from restaurant outlets for
testing and evaluation.

Furthermore, Fairwood has engaged mystery shoppers visiting
selected restaurants twice every month to collect feedback and
findings. Immediate follow-up actions are taken for improvement
of food quality and service performance.

Food Safety Task Force and Staff Training

Under the lead of the Chief Executive Officer, a Food Safety Task
Force has been set up to arouse awareness on food safety within
the Group.

Besides, training on the use of equipment and briefings on the
operating procedures are offered to the employees to ensure
that the responsible staff understands exactly the food handling
procedures. Ongoing on-the-job trainings are administered for
skill advancement, which is one of our operational goals and
standards.
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FOOD QUALITY AND SAFETY (continued)

Sustainable Procurement

Group purchasing

As a responsible member of the community and to ensure food
safety and quality, the Group adopts the following procurement
practices:

B Competitive tender

Procurement for projects or equipment follows a strict
tendering process to select the most suitable supplier available
for the Group’s particular needs. The tendering process is
well planned and managed by responsible departments and
divisions. Since Fairwood is committed to the provision of
good food to sustain the corporate mission of “Enjoy Great
Food. Live a Great Life!”, competitive tendering is encouraged
as it could stimulate innovation in the way products are
provided. It is also an opportunity to re-evaluate pricing
structures and incentives.

B Rational selection standards
Suppliers are selected based upon rational and clear criteria,
such as business accreditation, management system, operating
stability and conditions, legal compliance, business reference,
technical expertise, quality, price, delivery assurance, and
follow-up service, so as to procure superior goods and services
from the most competitive sources.

The Group monitors the overall performance of selected
food ingredient suppliers according to the selection criteria.
Additional Information, such as the number of returned goods
and complaints and observation results after visits to suppliers’
production plants, is also used in the evaluation process.
Currently, food ingredients are sourced from 39 countries.
Apart from Hong Kong and Mainland China, the top ten
most used ingredients are imported from the United States,
Thailand, Taiwan, Brazil, India, United Kingdom, Vietnam,
Japan, Malaysia and Germany.
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FOOD QUALITY AND SAFETY (continued)

Supply chain management

Food quality and safety is one of the top priorities in Fairwood.
Its supply chain management system oversees and manages
processes all the way from raw materials and ingredients’
selection, transportation and logistics, food processing and
cooking, to the dishes consumed by customers and possible
waste generation. The Group is committed to ensure the efficient
operation of its supply chain through monitoring the production
quality and ethical business conduct of their suppliers and
manufacturers, the timely delivery of goods and products by their
transportation vendors, the production quality of their restaurants
as well as energy and resources utilisation.

Product development and quality assurance

We have our own food quality and safety policy and standard
in the purchasing and processing level. This is not only for
meeting the consumers’ demand but also for catching up on
our competencies in efficient and effective production and
quality control. The Group's Purchasing and Quality Assurance
Departments collect and assess the samples from the central food
processing plant and restaurant outlets randomly and periodically.

On some occasions, an independent testing laboratory is engaged
for special food safety testing. Cross-discipline operation and
review meetings are held to discuss about food safety issues and
to devise measures and policies to reduce, eliminate and prevent
the occurrence of any food safety hazard; at the same time, to
raise food safety and quality standards. The prominence of the
concepts of quality and safety is driven by the Management of
the Group and executed by their people working as a team to
constantly adding value to these aspects.
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CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT AND EXPERIENCE
Advancement of Elderly Care

In order to better serve the silver hairs and cater for their needs,
we have launched a series of new “Silver Hair” campaigns on the
International Senior Citizen’s Day, 16 November 2014, including,
among others, the introduction of the “Care for Seniors” card,
making improvement to facilities and store set up and initiating
caring food serving services. We believe this is our way of offering
respect and expressing gratitude to the elderly for their invaluable
contributions made to the society.

“Care for Seniors” card

This is a discount card offered to the elderly at no cost. It has a
stored monthly discount value of HK$300 and from which HK$3
will be deducted for setting off against the bill for each purchase
by the seniors. The stored monthly discount will be automatically
topped up to HK$300 at the end of each month.

Facilities modifications

“Priority Seats” are set up at 32 stores for the elderly. The area is
brightened for better visuality and the air speed and temperature
of the air-conditioners are adjusted to ensure that the elderly
enjoy their meals comfortably. There are stick hooks fixed to
tables and hand rails are installed in toilets of those stores.
Currently, Fairwood runs all its outlets in a “barrier-free” manner
by installing movable seats and ramps. And, the food menu is
displayed using non-glaring stripes so that the elderly can see
clearly the food choices.
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CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT AND EXPERIENCE (continued)
No monosodium glutamate (MSG) series for more vegetable
and less meat items

In order to promote “more vegetable and less meat” eating habit,
dishes like broccoli fish fillet and double-stewed soup without
MSG are introduced.

ERRELRE
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Experiencing “elderly lives”

Store employees experienced the lives of elders through
games and activities that help them understand the changes
in the physical functions and mentality of the aged. After the
activities, our store frontline staff has taken greater initiative to
communicate with the elderly customers and shown their respect
and care to them naturally.
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CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT AND EXPERIENCE (continued)
Food ordering and delivery

Food serving to table during dinner hours is offered to customers
with special needs since June 2014 and such services are being
launched to approximately 70 stores now.

Introduction of Veggie Series

Brand new veggie series with full vegetable no-meat recipes
were introduced to the market in 2014. The dishes are made of
specially prepared sauce to make it tasty. This is to promote tasty
healthy food culture and to improve our brand image.

Personalised Service

Fairwood allows selection of cooking styles and seasoning sauces
for few selected food from which customers may opt according to
their preferences when placing orders.

RIREEBERDH
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OUR PEOPLE

Employee Training and Development

The Group values human resource as one of its most vital assets
and has in place a series of training programmes as listed below
to develop its employees professionally. For instance, all newly
hired employees would attend Employee Orientation or Induction
Training during which, they learn about Fairwood’s working
atmosphere, corporate culture and ethics.

Fairwood understands that classroom and theoretical training may
not provide sufficient knowledge and skills for their employees;
thus, on-the-job interactive training programmes are designed to
serve as a platform for its staff to enhance their technical skill and
to further develop their potentials.

With the help of the People Development Task Force under the
lead of the Chief Executive Officer, the Group is dedicated to
develop a committed, competent and happy team following the
5Rs concept (recruitment, retention, recreation, recognition and
reward). It provides career development opportunities, enhances
job satisfaction by setting individual goals and encourages as
well as a dynamic and energetic work attitude in the workplace.
Ample promotion opportunities and attractive incentive offers are
planned to reward employees with outstanding performance. A
number of training programmes are designed to train and guide
related professionals to progress and advance in the industry.

List of corporate training and development programmes
Employee orientation programme/Induction training
Corporate culture training

Occupational safety and health training

Professional/Food industry-based training

Management trainee programme

Customer service training

Information systems training
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OUR PEOPLE (continued)

Employee Relations and Engagement

To attract high-calibre talent while cultivating a strong sense
of belonging among existing employees, Fairwood encourages
candid communication by listening to and caring for the
employees. The management has promoted work-life balance
by introducing flexi-work schedules while strengthening a good
sense of corporate attachment through organising a wide array of
staff functions.

Effective internal communication is the foundation of Fairwood's
success; its reach goes well beyond corporate training. The monthly
issue of the Group's internal newsletter for employees "Fairwood
PostZ 4% will keep employees up to date on the latest news and
developments of the Group. Indeed, the newsletter provides work
safety information and tips, employee job promotion announcement
and stories of customers’ food dining experience and compliments.
Beginning in June 2014, a section “Fairwood Thick Toast Mailbox
PE [EZ 1] {2#8" was introduced to encourage employees to
share the best practices at work they discovered. The responses
were absolutely overwhelming and employees were often giving
advice on environmentally friendly practices and the concept
of green and smart living. The newsletter provides a channel to
document the Group's development, employees’ achievement and
worthy activities undertaken. Newly joined employees could easily
share the history and learn the interactive and supportive culture of
the Group.
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OUR PEOPLE (continued)

The Culture Development Task Force focuses on cultivating a
"Happy Team” culture in the Group. We believe our people
will seek continuous self-improvement and advancement, with
the enthusiasm to deliver an enjoyable dining experience to our
customers and to “Live a Great Life!”.

Communication and Cultural Activities

For all employees

B Big Bang Meeting — Communicate and establish the Group’s
development direction every six months

B Barbecue party

B Mahjong competition

For all central food processing plant and restaurant
employees

B Monetary subsidies for Ocean Park tickets

B Hong Kong local tour

B Birthday party

B Central food processing plant party

B Chinese New Year greeting party

There is no child or forced labour in the company as the Group
works in compliance with the Employment Ordinance of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in terms of employment
management. The recruitment process strictly abides by the
guidelines as stated in the Notice of Appointment issued by
the Group’s Human Resource Department. The right candidate
would be hired in accordance with the job requirement and talent
matching process to build a happy and sustainable workforce.
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OUR PEOPLE (continued)
Employee Safety, Health and Wellness

The Group has adopted various occupational health and safety
measures. Guidelines on Employees Health and Safety and
Occupational Health & Food Safety Operation Procedure are
developed to enhance a healthy and safe working environment
for employees. All newly hired operational employees undergo
safety training and receive guidance on acceptable personal
hygiene measures. Training buddies are assigned to encourage
and support newly joined employees to follow safety measures
and to ensure that they are able to adapt to the new working
environment smoothly.

The Workplace Safety Task Force has been set up to promote high
safety standards in the workplace. The safety reward program
is launched to recognise those employees who promote and
demonstrate safety awareness. The best performance award is
granted to those outstanding restaurant branches who show
exceptional ability in keeping their workplace safe and well.
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AEBEHE—FREFEENELEMRIER  The Group also partnered with Dr. Kong, a manufacturer of

Dr. Kong& % - EBNE TBEES - LA healthy shoes and footcare products, to promote safety awareness

REIXZE - by providing monetary subsidies to the employees for the
purchase of safety shoes for work.

SEAh - BT E TEEAERNNRIES) ©  Besides, work-life balance and after hour activities are organised
FEETIWREL BREBENFEMME  for employees to relax and exercise their body for better health

APRfE o and personal wellness.
HZ2F@RE Number of safety related awards
BERREITE2HEIE Occupational health and safety award

B A TENBERELZ2BIMNEE B Catering Industry Safety Award Scheme (2014/2015)
¥ L2 HRE)ETEI(2014/2015)E & ¢ Competition organised by Labour Department and
Occupational Safety & Health Council:

— MESEEEABHEESE — Awards to management staff in two fast food stores
— AR —RREEBER — Outstanding award of fast food stores serving Chinese and

general categories of food

- A=l A¥L°L | ¥
f ‘!Jl.ﬂizl'
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OUR PEOPLE (continued)

Occupational health and safety information

The Group has focused on providing health and safety trainings,
introducing safety tips in internal newsletters and providing
monetary subsidies for safety shoes purchase. Fairwood has also
participated in the Labour Department’s Catering Industry Safety
Award Scheme, with an aim to promote and enhance safety
awareness and practice among employees.

Employee Green and Healthy Living
Fairwood encourages employees to live a great life by sponsoring
them to participate in various activities.

EX02 3 mE
Organisers Activities
B FBERARINREBESALES B OBEBAE

MTR Corporation and Hong Kong
Amateur Athletic Association

B EERRe B EMERRAR]
The Community Chest and
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited

m TfE
Mindset

m FELeRGHE
Hong Kong Council of Social Service

m EETH

Sowers Action

MTR Hong Kong Race Walking

m M ARERNR
SHKP Vertical Run

" %P FRE2014
Walk Up Jardine House 2014

B HRRRBIE

Caring Company Scheme

n ZEALEARS RS
Educational assistance for children living in
the mountains of Yunnan province

RREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OUR PEOPLE (continued)

Diversity

The Group also appreciates the importance of cultural diversity in
the development of Fairwood, and employs a workforce in a wide
range of age, genders, ethnicities, nationalities and education
background. With an effort to support equal employment
opportunities, the Group has initiated a community recruitment
program specifically targeted at housewives and ethnic minority
groups. By providing flexible working hours, on-the-job training
and having an ethnic minority ambassador, the Group helped the
new recruits to integrate into the team of members successfully,
while also providing the opportunity of work-life balance.

Equal Opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for employees in respect
of company benefits, career path promotion, performance
appraisal, training and development. The employees will not be
discriminated or deprived of any opportunity due to reason of
their age, gender, ethnicity or nationality.

Human Capital

As at 31 March 2015, the total number of employees of the
Group was 4,450 (31 March 2014: 4,555) with 3,797 from Hong
Kong. Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job
nature, qualifications and experience. Salaries and wages are
normally reviewed annually based on performance appraisals and
other relevant factors.
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m EEERR
Medical insurance
B RFIMAES
Mandatory provident fund
B EERERR
Employment compensation insurance
m(RAEE B
Guaranteed pay
Y EHEEN
Variable pay
m FR
Annual leave
m EERS
Statutory holiday
m BHERFER
Maternity/Paternity leave with pay

RREEEBRAF
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OUR PEOPLE (continued)

Employee compensation and benefits policy

To attract, retain, and motivate employees, Fairwood has devised
a competitive compensation and benefit package as listed. The
Fairwood Caring Fund is set up to help employees who suffer
from financial difficulties due to unexpected personal or family
mishaps to bridge over while the Fairwood Education Fund aims
to support employees who have children attending primary or
secondary education in Hong Kong.

m EHEERE

Examination and study leave
m FIFTEAL

Discretionary bonus
mEEER

Education allowance
m SETRERESR

Dining discount for employees
B AREREES

Fairwood Caring Fund
B RREHEES

Fairwood Education Fund
m EMEREBRG

Severance payment/Long service payment
m ERROEREKRRR

Group critical lllness insurance with body check up
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OUR PEOPLE (continued)

Employee turnover

The Group acknowledged that recruitment and staff retention
has been challenging due to the overall business conditions of the
industry at large.

Fairwood has been striving to retain young employees; the
unique culture of trendiness means the workforce should stay
young and energetic at heart. Regardless of the employees’
gender, age and ethnical background, the Group seeks to inspire
employees to live a life full of excitement through supporting a
variety of company organised activities as well as participating
in community and charity activities. Despite an aging population
being the long-term demographic trend in Hong Kong, the
workforce of Fairwood will be sustainable and the overall turnover
rate expected to stabilise in the long run as the composition of
our employees is not dependent on a young age workforce.
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INVESTING IN OUR COMMUNITY

Fairwood is passionate about charity involvement; a series of
company-wide charity work were done by the Group in the
reporting period. The Group believes that giving back to the
community is incredibly important to a responsible enterprise
in the society. Regardless of the cause, to support a variety of
charitable initiatives throughout the year was both inspiring and
meaningful. A number of neighbourhood charity activities were
organised to substantiate the Group's belief and to promote a
more harmonious society in which every community member can
"Enjoy Great Food. Live a Great Life!”.

Fairwood is not hesitated to get customers involved in charity
work. It has helped fundraising for various charities over the
years. Often, donation boxes are put at the cashier counters
to encourage customers to contribute to the cause. Under
the reporting period, Fairwood supported Changing Young
Lives Foundation to raise funds for the provision of education,
protection and development to the poorest and weary children
and families in Hong Kong and mountain villages in Mainland
China.

With the Group’s people-centric philosophy, together with the
community’s need for encumbrance-free access, the Group took
pride in becoming the first Hong Kong fast food chain to provide
a “Barrier-free” environment. Various modifications were made to
existing restaurants and practices, such as widening the walkways,
installing movable seats and ramps and helping to order and
deliver meals. Restaurants are set up to allow easy wheelchair
access either through permanent renovations or movable facilities
in order to better serve the wider community, especially the
physically challenged.
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INVESTING IN OUR COMMUNITY (continued)

Charitable Events

Fairwood breakfast campaign and Poon Choi banquet for St
James’ Settlement

Breakfast was available for eligible students from low income
families in the school days at designated Fairwood restaurants.
The objective is to help the students to begin a day with a great
morning and a total of 6,000 sets of breakfasts were enjoyed by
them in two months.

Poon Choi banquet aimed at serving traditional festive food to the
needed families was held to celebrate the Chinese New Year.

Christmas charity party for the needy

As Christmas is a festive time to share happiness with others,
the Group organised Christmas parties in its stores to celebrate
with the needy. Through the sharing of delicious festive food and
games specially planned for the occasion, all participants enjoyed
a great afternoon.

Fairwood $4 Meal campaign

Hoping to evoke a sense of nostalgia about the 1970s, the
"Fairwood $4 Meal Campaign” was launched, further underlining
the Group’s commitment to social responsibility by raising public
awareness of the financial difficulties faced by the underprivileged
in Hong Kong.
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INVESTING IN OUR COMMUNITY (continued)

Fairwood warm caring campaign

Through the “Fairwood Warm Caring campaign”, glutinous rice
with chicken together with woollen socks were distributed to the
elderly in order to sustain the “Live a Great Life” philosophy of
Fairwood.

Donations

Donation boxes were placed in Fairwood’s restaurants to help
collect monetary donations from the public for various charity
projects.

ZEER FEAL
Charity Group Target receivers
m HEE m BREE

Heep Hong Society

B FREASEIERARL
HKSKH Lady MaclLehose Centre

B ATE
Operation Smile

B NEFEEEE

Changing Young Lives Foundation

Children with special needs

m FREE
Elderly who suffered from stroke or
cerebrovascular accident (CVA)

n EHEAMBEERENRE
Children with cleft lip or cleft palate in
Mainland China

B REEEA  BERIFBRERENTE
Children from low-income, single-parent
families or new immigrants

RREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INVESTING IN OUR COMMUNITY (continued)
Awards and recognition

“2014 Distinguished Family-Friendly Employer” by the Family
Council

"5 Years Plus Caring Company Logo” by The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service

“Barrier-free Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service

“Qutstanding Award for Social Inclusion” by The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service

“ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme” by the Employees
Retraining Board
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Waste Management

In order to reduce food waste, Fairwood is making continuous
use of the actual food order database to plan for the optimum
production quantities of various food items at different time
intervals and different seasons.

Hazardous waste

As a commercial enterprise specialising in operating fast food
restaurants, Fairwood takes measures to eliminate air, water
and land pollutants in their food production process, which are
regulated under laws and regulations. There is also no hazardous
waste produced by the Group in the reporting period.

Non-hazardous waste produced
Organisational boundaries: The Group accounts for 100% of
emissions from its operations.

Non-hazardous wastes produced by Fairwood mainly consist
of used paper (e.g. office paper, poster, tray mat paper in
restaurants), packaging materials (e.g. carton box, plastic bag and
disposable utensils), scraps of meat, oil and grease and food waste
in the central food processing plant and restaurants.

Oil and grease produced from food processing and cooking in the
central food processing plant and restaurants are collected by local
waste oil contractors for biodiesel production which helps reduce
Fairwood's overall greenhouse gas emission.

The Group would also consider to involve local food waste
recycling companies for food waste collection and treatment and
perform waste audit regularly to characterise and quantify food
waste generated by the Group.

Fairwood has installed filtration systems for its exhaust and waste
water produced from the central food processing plant and
restaurant outlets. It aims to reduce air and water pollutions to the
ambient environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Cleaning agents are used in the central food processing plant
and restaurant outlets for cleaning purpose. The items are well-
managed by branch managers and employees. No excessive
cleaning agents are kept in the store and they are stored
separately with marking and labelling. The used cleaners are
discharged into drains after proper filtration for removing coarse
solid waste.

Energy Conservation

Electricity consumption is identified as having a significant impact
on the environment and natural resources. A typical commercial
building uses more energy for lighting than other electric
equipment. The engineering team of the Group has implemented
several best practices and various energy saving initiatives to
mitigate emissions and reduce electricity usage to save the
environment. In the Group’s headquarter, the central food
processing plant and restaurant outlets, most halogen lamps (50W
each) were replaced by energy-saving LED lighting fixtures (6W).
According to the engineering report, the initiatives produced 83%
saving in electricity related to lighting, not to mention the reduced
demand on air-conditioning in the LED light installed areas.

In all restaurants, the gas-fired kitchen steaming cabinets (43kW)
have been substituted by energy efficient steamers (33kW),
allowing 25% savings in gas power. In the central food processing
plant, the replacement (55kW to 33kW) contributed to a gas
power saving of 40%. With a heat exchanger installed in the
central food processing plant, the recycling of steam from all
steamers could provide free 80°C hot water for cleaning and
processing use. It is estimated that nearly 70% of the steam is
captured for recycling.

Recently, two patented energy saving controllers for air-
conditioning units have been tested in a restaurant. This
equipment can optimise the refrigerant supply and is expected
to produce electricity saving of more than 20%. Further testing
and investigation are now in progress and wider adoption of
the technology in suitable restaurants is preferred should the
technology prove effective and lasting.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

In the central food processing plant and restaurants, the cooking,
air-conditioning and lighting equipment are checked regularly and
kept in proper condition. During cooking, containers are well-
covered so as to reduce cooking time and fuel use. This is a good
practice to maximise the efficiency of the equipment.

Staff's awareness of taking environmentally friendly actions has
been raised with the implementation of the initiatives. Recycling
of steam also provides a more comfortable working environment
which is welcomed by staff. They are very pleased to support
Fairwood’s energy saving measures.
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SUSTAINABILITY TARGETS AND ACTION
In future, Fairwood will introduce the following initiatives to
strengthen its ESG performance:

& BE EX
Programme/Targets Focus
B K[ RRMEGEEE /A B BSARENRE e RERERUENKRKEEST

To establish Environmental Protection
and Energy Saving Task Force
EMRRIRRAZEIETL

To organise environmental protection
training to employees

SIEE Z[IRE RS
To introduce more series on "Silver
Hair" campaigns

RAOBIEE 8 TREZ T AE
P&l - PIanEE S et g R
& - HEM MR RE S EE - MR
X{bER

To provide multi-dimensional training
programmes to ethnic minority staff,
such as language training, cultural
and social literacy, to help them
overcome the language barrier and
tackle the cultural differences

BARZEREREEEERR R
i

To put more resources in "barrier-
free" modifications in our restaurant
outlets

EELRE TR TEHIERERNE
AN & O ERET &

To continue organising work-life
balance activities and wellness
programmes for our employees

a1

To enhance Fairwood'’s compliance and best practice in
environmental, social and governance areas
RABBKAIRREH

To improve our employees’ awareness on environmental
protection

B RIS REMREMBMINT R

To better serve the elderly and cater for their needs

ERACEIRAGE S TIERIE

To develop a cheerful and harmonious working
environment

RESEKFE TSR

To promote social inclusion of ethnic minority staff
REE L - SIEMBEBES

To promote unity, co-operation and teamwork

EPEFEAL

To take care of the needy in our community

R TIEEA RN T - HMHE TR EN S
DR

To promote work-life balance so that our people can
achieve both occupational and physical wellness
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 63, is the Executive Chairman of
the Company and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr Lo graduated from the Parsons School of Design
with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended a course
on food and beverage management at New York University.
After completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977, Mr Lo
returned to Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast Food Limited.
In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of the Company.
Mr Lo was the Managing Director of the Company from 1991 to
1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company in January 2000. On 1 January 2009, Mr Lo relinquished
his role as Chief Executive but remained as the Executive Chairman
of the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lo is a director of Neblett Investments Limited which
has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr Chan Chee Shing, aged 61, is the Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr Chan received
a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from the University
of Manitoba, Canada in 1977 and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of East Asia, Macau
in 1987. Mr Chan has over 30 years’ experience in marketing.
Prior to joining the Group, He worked as a senior executive for
a restaurant group which is listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr Chan joined the
Group in 1995. He was appointed a Director of the Company in
January 1998 and was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 1 January 2009. Mr Chan is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Ms Mak Yee Mei, aged 48, is the Executive Director and
Company Secretary of the Company. Ms Mak holds a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Economics, a Master of Science Degree in
Finance and a Master Degree in Business Administration. She is
an Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
as well as a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms Mak has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. Prior to joining
the Company, she had held senior management positions in
several companies the securities of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Ms Mak joined the Company in 2004 and was
appointed Executive Director, Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative of the Company on 1 January 2010. She is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Ng Chi Keung, aged 66, is the Non-executive Director of the
Company, Members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr Ng holds a Master Degree
in Business Administration. He is an Associate Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr Ng has over
30 years' experience in finance and management. Prior to joining
the Group, he held senior management positions with a number
of well-known local and overseas multinational companies. Mr
Ng joined the Group in 1994 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in November 1995. He was re-designated as a Non-
executive Director of the Company from 1 January 2010 following
his retirement from the Group. At the same time, Mr Ng was also
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee and remains as a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Ng
is an Independent Non-executive Director of Soundwill Holdings
Limited which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, aged 67, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 1991. He
is also a Member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Chan graduated
from The University of Hong Kong, the University of Strathclyde
and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor
of Arts Degree, a Diploma in Social Work, a Master of Business
Administration Degree and a Master of Education Degree. He is a
Fellow Member of the Institute of Human Resources Management.
Mr Chan has over 40 years’' experience in human resources
development in public, commercial and educational sectors and
is actively engaged in the professional development of student
services personnel in higher education in China and Hong Kong.

Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen, aged 62, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
September 2000. He is also the Members of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr
Lau holds a Doctorate Degree in Business Administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, an MBA Degree from
the University of Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist
Studies from The University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Society of
Certified Management Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau had over
12 years of management and accounting experience in the private
and public sectors in Canada prior to returning to Hong Kong in
1987. Dr Lau is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive of
Giordano International Limited which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. He is also the Chairman of the Advisory
Committees on management and marketing at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University as well as Adjunct Professor of Marketing at
City University of Hong Kong.
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Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo, aged 50, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
November 2008. He is also a Member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr Tsoi graduated from the University of
Western Ontario, Canada with an Honours Degree in Business
Administration in 1986. Mr Tsoi is currently an Executive Director
of ReOrient Group Limited which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. He is also the Deputy Chairman of the
supervisory board of Data Modul AG, which is listed on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange. He was formerly an Executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of Varitronix International Limited;
Non-executive Director of Concord New Energy Group Limited
(formerly known as China WindPower Group Limited) and Zhidao
International (Holdings) Limited, all are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr Peter Wan Kam To, aged 62, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2009. He
is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a Member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Wan is a Fellow
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He was
a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong & China firm
and a practicing accountant in Hong Kong for over 30 years
with extensive experience in auditing, finance, advisory and
management. Mr Wan is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
namely China Resources Land Limited, Dalian Port (PDA) Company
Limited, Harbin Bank Co., Ltd., Huaneng Renewables Corporation
Limited, Kerry Logistics Network Limited, KFM Kingdom Holdings
Limited, S. Culture International Holdings Limited, Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd. and Target Insurance (Holdings)
Limited. Mr Wan is also the Treasurer and Council Member of
the Open University of Hong Kong. Mr Wan was formerly an
Independent Director of Mindray Medical International Limited (a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, USA) and RDA
Microelectronics, Inc. (a company listed on the NASDAQ) and an
Independent Non-executive Director of GreaterChina Professional
Services Limited and Real Gold Mining Limited, both of which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) has pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is
situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda and principal place of business is situated at 2/F, TRP
Commercial Centre, 18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments. The principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
161 and 162 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the “Business Review"” and “Prospects”
set out on pages 7 to 11 of this Annual Report. The information
related to food quality and safety, customers, employees,
community and environmental protection are set out on pages
15 to 45 of the environmental, social and governance report. This
discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set
out in note 3(b) to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers represent less than 30% (2014 less than
30%) of the Group's total turnover and purchases respectively.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 76 to 162.
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DIVIDENDS
An interim dividend of HK28.0 cents (2014: HK23.0 cents)
per share was paid on 30 December 2014. The Board now
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK52.0 cents
(2014: HK39.0 cents) per share in respect of the year ended 31
March 2015.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$168,000 (2014: HK$121,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company purchased shares of the Company
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Shares were repurchased during the year to reduce
the dilutive effect of granting share options. Details of movements
in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
note 23 to the financial statements.

Save as set out in note 23(c)ii) to the financial statements, there
were no other purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To

57



EEERE

Report of the Directors

BER(E)
BREARRBRERMEANZE109 K % 189(viii)
1 BREAENRFIRELEREEHR
MERFAFAS LHERT BRREE
RFBEEERAER  THEEERNER
FRRREEF RS EBEIREMT -

BYMTEENEETEZEFHA=F -
REARANERZAL - AIBERARA]
AR EF RS EwmERE - MR BEE
£

EFNERITHRARREG « HRRHG R
RiEEPRENEINKE

EARRAIRIBCE S LB A1) (TE S
1) FE3I52FREBFNELMBR - IR
RUEMBTAESETESFRINIREST
A1) (B2 7 R D) A B AR T AR AR 7] KBk
RATA®H  ARANEZTRESTTHAR
MEBEER _T-—RF=A=1+—
B A ARR REARAE (BN ARF K
BIEXVERFTEI R E 2 ) RO (D - AERE AR (D I
EREENEDZIORBT

(a) EA QAR

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Bye-laws 109 and 189(viii) of the Company,
Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo and Mr Peter Wan Kam To shall retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and Mr Tony
Tsoi Tong Hoo and Mr Peter Wan Kam To, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
were as follows:

(@) Interests in the Company

SHEEARITNERR
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each

RERRE
TRENEE HERTRG
fiAEE  ZhER @ AAEE  EMER  ROEE A% A%EM
Number of
underlying
shares Percentage
pursuant of total
Personal Family ~ Corporate Other to Share issued
interests interests interests interests Option Total shares
EH5 Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 109,000 - - 55435384 - 55,544,384 43.96%
(Hii1)
(Note 1)
i) Chan Chee Shing 215,000 - - - 800,000 1,015,000 0.80%
REH Mak Yee Mei 920,000 - - - 80,000 1,000,000 0.79%
RREEEERAF
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

(a) Interests in the Company (continued)

Note 1: These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited
(“Neblett”) and CFJ Holdings Limited (“CFJ”). The companies
are beneficially owned by two separate trusts of which Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trusts as a
discretionary object and as the Executive Chairman of the
Company, was deemed interested in the shares held by
Neblett and CFJ.

(b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited (“FFFL")

BREREERAHE
Number of non-voting deferred shares
N RikER ArER HitiEz ay
Personal Family  Corporate Other
interests interests interests interests Total
EH5 Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 11,500 - - 279,357 290,857
(FizE2)
(Note 2)

FizE2: 1t & AR 5 EPengto International
Limited ([Pengto )58 ° & A A&
—(EAREFAGEERAMBEERE R
EREMERES - BRBEEIREE
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Note 2: These shares were held by Pengto International Limited
("Pengto”), a company beneficially owned by a trust of
which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trust
as a discretionary object and as the Executive Chairman of
the Company, was deemed interested in the shares held by
Pengto.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the section
“Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March 2015, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of their
spouses or children under eighteen years of age had any other
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Details of Directors’ and chief executives’ interests under the
Company’s share option scheme are also set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at 31 March 2015, the Company maintained two share option
schemes, namely, the 2002 Option Scheme and 2011 Option
Scheme. Details of these schemes are as follows:

(a) 2002 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2002 Option Scheme was to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of
the Company’s businesses; to provide additional incentives
to any employee of the Company or its subsidiaries or any
consultant, agent, representative, advisor, supplier of goods or
services, customer, contractor, business ally and joint venture
partner (the “2002 Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and
to promote the long term financial success of the Company by
aligning the interests of option holders to shareholders of the
Company.

Under the 2002 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any Director (including Non-
executive Director and Independent Non-executive Director)
or any of the 2002 Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee to take
up options to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
which shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of offer and (iii) the nominal value of a
share. The maximum entitlement for any one participant under
the 2002 Option Scheme shall not in any 12 months period up
to the date of grant exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in
issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(a) 2002 Option Scheme (continued)

On 7 September 2011, the Company terminated the 2002
Option Scheme and adopted the 2011 Option Scheme on the
same date. As a result of the termination, no further options
may be granted under the 2002 Option Scheme but the
options that have been granted and remained outstanding
as of that date under such scheme remain effective. As
at 23 June 2015, the total number of shares available for
issue under the 2002 Option Scheme (being share options
granted but remained outstanding) is 1,082,000 shares which
represented approximately 0.86% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at that date.

(b) 2011 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2011 Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses; to provide incentives or rewards to
any employee, Director (including Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Director) or officer of any member
of the Group or any related trust or company (the “2011
Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and to promote the
long term financial success of the Company by aligning the
interests of option holders to shareholders of the Company.

Under the 2011 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any of the 2011 Option Scheme
Qualifying Grantee to take up options to subscribe for shares
in the Company at a price which shall not be less than
whichever is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of offer
and (i) the nominal value of a share.

As at 23 June 2015, the total number of shares available for
issue under the 2011 Option Scheme is 6,233,528 shares
which represented approximately 4.93% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at that date. The maximum
entitlement for any one participant under the 2011 Option
Scheme shall not in any 12 months period up to the date of
grant exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue.

The life of the 2011 Option Scheme is 10 years commencing
on 7 September 2011 and expiring on 6 September 2021.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Directors and
employees of the Group had the following interests in options
to subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per share
at 31 March 2015 was HK$20.20 (2014: HK$15.68)) granted
for HK$1 consideration under the 2002 Option Scheme and
2011 Option Scheme. As at 31 March 2015, the total grant date
fair value of unexercised vested options and unvested options,
measured in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(r) to the financial statements, amounted to HK$1,281,000
and HK$532,000 respectively. The options are unlisted. Once
vested, each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of HK$1 each of the Company. Assuming that all
the options outstanding as at 31 March 2015 are exercised, the
Company will receive proceeds of HK$9,617,000.

(i) 2002 Option Scheme

H-%-1% H-%-1% REERE
BA-B ZA=t-8 PRERE  fRREN
RN ERET ERXNH EREN RER R s Shig
778 frkam RREBE  MEBRERE ERERE BRiEgA BhEEA fikg SRURE  TOUAE
Weighted
average price
of dlosing
Closing price price per share
Number Number pershare  immediately
of options Number of Number of Number of of options immediately before date
Exercisable  outstandingat ~ options granted  optionslapsed options exercised outstandingat  Exercise price  before date of of exercise
Date granted period 1 April 2014 duringtheyear  duringtheyear ~ during the year 31 March 2015 pershare  grant of options of options
Rin(E2) “ERNE ANCR-SERA-BE 1,000,000 - - (200,000 0000 EMeam  EMesT  ARIRT
Chan Chee Shing MANE —3-7EZR=1-A HK$6.26 HK$6.8 HK$16.78
(Diector) SApri09  EEAREE%E
Ererciable n fve tranches
of 20% during the period
from 1 April 201010
31 March 2016
Rian(EZ) Z2-BF JRZ3-4-5-H% 160,000 - - (80,000} 80,000 8087 ARSI 817067
Mk Yee Mei ZR-B EF-REfR=t-A Kg8.08 HK38.07 HKs17.06
(Director) IMach 2010 EEARERN%E
Evercisable in five ranches
of 20% during the period
from 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016
RIEEBER D F

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(i) 2002 Option Scheme (continued)

H=%-Df H-%-1% RikRE
BA-A Zh=1-A BRERE  fkEAN
KRN EREF  ERREE  EAMRN ik Sk RFAAEN Shig
#58 fR8E  BREHR  HBRERA EhEgA LT EhEsA ke SKUWR  THUOE
Weighted
average price
of closing
Closing price ~price per share
Number Number pershare  immediately
of options Number of Number of Number of of options immediately before date
Exercsable  outstandingat ~ options granted optionslapsed options exercised outstandingat  Exercise price  before date of of exercise
Date granted period 1April 2014 duringthe year ~ duringtheyear ~ duringtheyear 31 March 2015 pershare  grant of options of options
8 ZRENE TRZ-FERA-RE 560,000 - - (518,000) 4,000 6267 Aot A0
Employees BANE —E-nE=f=1-A HK$6.26 HK$6.28 HK$16.03
SApil 2009 BEARERNE
Evercisable in five ranches
of 20% during the period
from 1 April 20100
31 March 2016
E8 Z5-F TRCE-ECATAR 40000 - - (20000 00 EE0NT AT EENTT
Employee “RTRA EE-tE-ATEA HK$1090 HK$10.92 HK$20.75
Torebnay 201 BEATLAR0%R
Erercisable n five tranches
of 20% during the period
from 16 February 2012
to 15 February 2017
8 2% Ti-E-—ERANA 480,000 - - (160,000) o0 EE0sT  EE0&T  ARI6KNT
Emplojee RANR EZE-nERANA HK$10.88 HK$10.82 HK$16.26

e
IMy 201 EEAREZ%A(E
Evercisable n ive tranches
of 20% during the period
fiom 9 May 2012 to
8May 2019
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BB iRt R (2 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(i) =2 ——FBRETE (ii) 2011 Option Scheme
H-g-m% R-R-1% SRERE
BA-H Zh=1-8 BEERE  fERAN
ik ERET ERXNH ERfIREN AR sk i ShingE
ol fTREH EREEE  hBRESR EhERE BRE%A EREgR fik@ SRUHE HinE
Weighted
average price
of closing
Closing price  price per share
Number Number pershare  immediately
of options Number of Number of Number of of options immediately before date
Exercisable  outstandingat ~ options granted  optionslapsed  optionsexercised  outstandingat  Exercise price  efore date of of exercise
Date granted period 1April 2014 duringtheyear ~ duringtheyear ~ during the year 31 March 2015 pershare  grant of options of options
13 ZI-MF ARCE-REAT-A - 100,000 (100,00 - - BHeRT  ERI6KT .
Employee tAt-B  EZE-CELATA HK$16.28 HK$16.26

Ny EEALERNGR
Erercisable n five ranches

of 20% during the period

from 11 July 2015 to

10July 202
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Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(r)
(i) and note 20 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning
of the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2015, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

mEUAB T : under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company, were as follows:
BEER B HEBRTKRG
BEFEN RS HEBE DL
Shares directly Percentage
and/or of total
indirectly held issued shares
(i) Neblett(Ffi7£1) (i)  Neblett (Note 1) 48,775,384 38.61%
(i)  CFI(BE2) (i) CFJ(Note 2) 6,660,000 5.27%
(ili) ~ Winning Spirit International (i) ~ Winning Spirit International
Corporation(MfE1) Corporation (Note 1) 48,775,384 38.61%
(iv)  HSBC International Trustee (iv)  HSBC International Trustee
Limited (Bd5E1) Limited (Note 1) 48,775,384 38.61%
(v)  HSBC Trustee (Cook Islands) (v)  HSBC Trustee (Cook Islands)
Limited (F#3¥2) Limited (Note 2) 6,660,000 5.27%
(vi)  Allard Partners Limited (vi)  Allard Partners Limited (“APL")
(TAPLI) (B#7E3) (Note 3) 8,633,600 6.83%
(vii)  Allard Partners Management (vii) Allard Partners Management
Ltd.([APML]) (Fi#7E3) Ltd. (“APML") (Note 3) 8,633,600 6.83%
(viii) ANLCM Investments Pty Ltd  (vii) ANLCM Investments Pty Ltd
(TANLCM J) (Bff5E3) ("ANLCM") (Note 3) 8,633,600 6.83%
(ix) Wayne Victor Allard Peters (ix)  Wayne Victor Allard Peters
(TWvVAP]) (K#7E3) ("WVAP") (Note 3) 8,633,600 6.83%
(x)  Sheva Nominees Pty Ltd (x)  Sheva Nominees Pty Ltd
(['SNPL) (BfF5E3) (“SNPL") (Note 3) 8,633,600 6.83%
(xi) Howard Kantor([HK) (xi)  Howard Kantor (“HK")
(KI5E3) (Note 3) 8,633,600 6.83%
(xii) Hayley Symon([HS]) (xii)  Hayley Symon (“HS")
(Mi7E3) (Note 3) 8,633,600 6.83%
MizE1: #5119 B R — #t ANeblettE # 3% Note 1: These interests represented the same block of shares directly held

& 2 B 15 > Winning Spirit International
Corporation# B Neblettf)100% 4 25 -
WU AR B ¥ BNeblett FTE EHE R H
B # % ° HSBC International Trustee
Limited D AZFABEE AW BEEZER
H {5 5t 2 % 5 A * ¥ BWinning Spirit
International Corporation&]100% &
I BURAR A A Neblett T E AR
PEY R

by Neblett. Winning Spirit International Corporation owned 100%
interest in Neblett and was therefore deemed interested in the
shares directly held by Neblett. HSBC International Trustee Limited,
in its capacity as a trustee of a trust of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi
Yeung is a discretionary object, owned 100% interest in Winning
Spirit International Corporation and was therefore deemed
interested in the shares directly held by Neblett;
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Note 2: These interests represented the same block of shares directly
held by CFJ. HSBC Trustee (Cook Islands) Limited, in its capacity
as a trustee of a trust of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a
discretionary object, owned 100% interest in CFJ and was
therefore deemed interested in the shares directly held by CFJ;
and

Note 3: These interests represented the same block of shares directly held
by APL. APML owned 100% interest in APL and was therefore
deemed interested in the shares directly held by APL. WVAP
owned 100% interest in ANLCM which in turn owned 60%
interest in APML whereas HK and HS each owned 50% interest
in SNPL which, in its capacity as a trustee, owned 40% interest in
APML. As such, WVAP, ANLCM, HK, HS and SNPL were deemed
interested in the shares directly held by APL through their interests
in APML.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31
March 2015.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The particulars of the following continuing connected transactions
of the Group are set out below in compliance with the reporting
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(a) Tenancy agreement with New Champion International
Limited (“New Champion”)
As detailed in note 27(b) to the financial statements, FFFL,
a subsidiary of the Company, leased a property from New
Champion with a lease term of three years from 10 April 2012
to 9 April 2015 for the operation of a fast food restaurant. On
26 March 2015, such lease was renewed for a further three
years from 10 April 2015. As New Champion is an associate
of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (a Director of the Company), the
entering into the lease constituted continuing connected
transaction for the Company. Details of rent and deposits paid
by FFFL relating to the property for the above transaction are
as follows:

—E-HF —ZT-mE

2015 2014

BET T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

REEFHE Rent for the year 1,680 1,680
Heks Rental deposits 420 420

BELTRAUNE4ASHERBERSZ
(T FHLEHRUDR T —HFL
A—HE - REF LETRAF14AE
76O - EHEZEHER RET
BERHLAE « FEEZ - A MR KRR
MIE °

With the amendments to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
on continuing connected transactions came into effect on 1
July 2014 (“New Listing Rules”), the renewed lease with New
Champion is exempted from shareholders’ approval, annual
review, announcement and circular requirements under Rule
14A.76(1)(c) of the New Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony")
As detailed in note 27(c) to the financial statements, FFFL
leased a property from Hibony for three years from 1 March
2012 to 28 February 2015 (“1st Transaction”) for the
operation of a fast food restaurant that had to be relocated
due to urban renewal. On 27 February 2015, such lease was
renewed for a further three years from 1 March 2015 (“2nd
Transaction”). As Hibony is an associate of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi
Yeung (a Director of the Company), the entering into the
lease constituted continuing connected transaction for the
Company. Details of rent and deposits paid by FFFL relating to
the property for the above transaction are as follows:

—Z-RfF —uE —T—=F
=HA—HZ% MA—HZ WA—HBZE
—E-hfF —T—RHF —T—F
=B=+—H —A=+NH =A=1+—H
(BZRXB) (B—KRS)

1 March 2015 to
31 March 2015

1 April 2014 to
28 February 2015

1 April 2013 to
31 March 2014

(2nd Transaction) (1st Transaction)
BT T BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEEHEE Rent for the year 253 2,286 2,493
Heke Rental deposits 759 660 660
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FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

In compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in connection
with the above continuing connected transactions with New
Champion and Hibony, the Independent Non-executive Directors
have reviewed and confirmed that the transactions with New
Champion and Hibony (the “Transactions”) have been entered
into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of agreements governing the
Transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(iv) the aggregate value of the Transactions for the year ended
31 March 2015 has not exceeded the maximum aggregate
annual value.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing connected transactions”, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

BANK LOANS
Particulars of bank loans of the Group at 31 March 2015 are set
out in note 18 to the financial statements.
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FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 163 of the
annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown
on page 164 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars
of the MPF Scheme are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

AUDITOR

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG
as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2015, save and except that
the Chairman and/or Managing Director (Chief Executive Officer)
of the Company are not subject to retirement by rotation, details
of which and the reasons for the deviation are stated below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by the Directors of the Company (the “Directors”).
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All Directors have taken decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of all Directors, as such, it has adopted
terms of reference for corporate governance functions that are in
line with the CG Code.

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control, financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Company. With the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner. Directors may choose to take independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Executive Committee
which comprises the three Executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
above-mentioned officers.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)")
Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The representation of INEDs is
more than one third of the Board. A list containing the names of
the Directors with their roles and functions has been published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Biographical details of all Directors are set out on pages 46 to 49
of this annual report. There is no relationship among directors of
the Board and in particular, between the Executive Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received from each of the INED an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of
any relationship or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of the independent judgment of the INEDs. Accordingly,
the Company considers that all the INEDs are independent.

Four full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
March 2015 and attendance record of each Director is set out
below:

HERE, EERE
Number of meetings attended/held

HITES

EHG (HITERE)
BRAEX (7T AEE,)
Bk

FBTES
RS8R

BYFHTES
FREESF
2B
ERZ
FERH

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 4/4
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Mak Yee Mei 4/4
Non-executive Director

Ng Chi Keung 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors

Joseph Chan Kai Nin 4/4
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 4/4
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 4/4
Peter Wan Kam To 4/4
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HRIBERAIEEETERNRRIFELENRE

jj °
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RAEZEZAC BAERBBZMEER

&k,
Be °

All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual
and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The statement of the auditor
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Company is set out on pages 74 and
75 in the independent auditor’s report. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, confirm that there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast doubt
upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development activities
either by attending training courses or by reading materials to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and skills of a director of a listed corporation.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
Messrs Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Chan Chee Shing respectively
whose roles are segregated and are not exercised by the same
individual.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years; however, the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company are not subject to retirement by rotation under the Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board considers that
the exemption of both the Chairman and the Managing Director
(the Chief Executive Officer) of the Company from such retirement
by rotation provisions would provide the Group with strong
and consistent leadership, efficient use of resources, effective
planning, formulation and implementation of long-term strategies
and business plans. The Board believes that it would be in the
best interest of the Company for such Directors to continue to be
exempted from retirement by rotation provisions.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Bye-laws to appoint any
person as a director of the Company either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a director are available at the
website of the Company.

According to the Bye-laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first annual
general meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election; and (ii) at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors (other than any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director) for the time being or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
provided that each Director (other than any Director holding office
as Chairman or Managing Director) including those appointed for
a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Currently, all Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by the shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two INEDs, Dr Peter Lau
Kwok Kuen and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are in line with the
CG Code and available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies and
recommends to the Board suitable candidate(s) to stand for
election by shareholders at annual general meeting, or when
necessary, to fill vacancies on the Board.

Policy for diversity was adopted by the Board in March 2014.
Under the policy, appointment of Board members will be made
on merit with due regard of benefits of diversity on the Board
such as having differences in the skills, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, gender, age and other
qualities of directors. The Board believes that the policy will
promote effective decision-making and better governance and
allow the Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions
to corporate issues.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, one Nomination
Committee meeting was held to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board; to assess the independence of INEDs and to
make recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
directors.

BUKEMEFELRSINT The attendance record of each member is as follows:
RE EERE
Number of meetings attended/held
HITES Executive Director
ERG(EE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman) 1/1
BYKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
2| 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 1/1
FiH Peter Wan Kam To 1/1
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, Mr Joseph
Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen and one Non-
executive Director, Mr Ng Chi Keung. Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Remuneration
Committee adopts written terms of reference that are in line with
the CG Code and are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and other related matters.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Remuneration
Committee met once to review the remuneration of Directors and
the attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERY,ERAB

Number of meetings attended/held

BYHHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

PREREF (£ /%) Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman) 1/1

2 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 11

FHTES Non-executive Director

RETR Ng Chi Keung 1/1
ERERA® AUDIT COMMITTEE

ERZEENEBRRE—RIIFRTEEFRTE
BAER=-RBIUIFNATESTREFE
£ BREALERFHELE BFREE
EHFRBLEEREIE  BFAELAR
AZHBMEDBITRARGE

EZZEENTIERECREREZESS
HEZH  BEHMBHRRLRE  LEE
BERGETED - A BB BAT S HNIS A B
PR EMEAREFRER - ZE G
BERIINBEZEMNEZBELMEE
ARARRMGERER - AMEEMERE
BRENMAREFOTRERKY - EX
ZEgZBBEBECDNALEEATRN
BE - W2 TIER AR A S B X Ay A8k

RREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Audit Committee comprises one Non-executive Director, Mr
Ng Chi Keung and three INEDs, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Mr Tony
Tsoi Tong Hoo and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr Peter Wan Kam To and meets at least twice a
year with the Company’s auditor.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant
or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal
auditor or external auditors before submission to the Board for
approval. It is also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature
of the external audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company'’s financial reporting system, internal control system and
risk management system and associated procedures. The Audit
Committee has written terms of reference which are in line with
the CG Code and are available on websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, two Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the remuneration of
external auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their
independence and the nature and scope of the audit; to review
the internal audit programme, findings and management’s
responses; and to evaluate the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERY, EBRY
Number of meetings attended/held

BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

FEE(EE) Peter Wan Kam To (Chairman) 2/2

PREEF Joseph Chan Kai Nin 22

BERx Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 2/2

FHITES Non-executive Director

R&R Ng Chi Keung 2/2
BBENE & AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

RZE—RE=ZA=1+T—HBLEFERN "
ARBZBERHENEZFIEEZ RS
XA/ XA TRRBA R B RMT

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the fees paid/payable to
the auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the auditor of the Company were as follows:

BT T

BRI E Nature of services HK$'000

—ENF—E-RFHPHEEEME  Review fee for 2014/2015 interim results 530

—TF T RERFREEXE Audit fee for 2014/2015 final results 3,024
BIRIR BT IE A IR RIS H IEBZ RIS Non-audit services which covered provision of

tax compliance services 417

#ER Total 3,971
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Mak Yee Mei is the Company Secretary and Executive Director
of the Company. As the Company Secretary, Ms Mak supports the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
the Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations
are followed. During the year ended 31 March 2015, she
undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group's internal
control system includes a well defined management structure
with limits of authority which is designed for the achievement of
business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensure maintenance of proper books and records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
publication, and to ensure compliance with relevant legislations
and regulations. The Board conducts regular reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control system.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communication. Designated Executive
Directors and senior management maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management directly.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION (continued)
All Directors had attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 11 September 2014 except Messrs. Joseph
Chan Kai Nin and Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo due to other commitment
with the attendance record as follows:

HERE, SERE
Number of meetings attended/held

HITES
BFHB(BITEE)

ST AE)
Rtk

FBTES
RE

BYFHITES
FBREEF
2B
ERZ
FERH

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 11
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 11
Mak Yee Mei 1/1

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors

Joseph Chan Kai Nin 0/1
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen /1
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 01
Peter Wan Kam To 1Al
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Procedures on how shareholders can convene a special general
meeting, put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings and
propose a person for election as a director are also available at
Company'’s website for shareholders’ information.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company's website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has published an up-to-date consolidated version
of its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the year ended
31 March 2015, there has been no change to these Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Fairwood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 76 to 162, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2015, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2015 and of the Group’s financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 June 2015
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HE_T—AF=RA=1+—RLEFEUABEITR)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

- —F-mE
2015 2014
B3 Frx T
Note $'000 $'000
—E Turnover 3(a) 2,244,885 2,037,719
FHERA Cost of sales (1,910,638) (1,761,424)
EF Gross profit 334,247 276,295
HbA Other revenue 4 6,684 4,792
EAb &8558 Other net losses 4 (3,659) (6,425)
HEEBH Selling expenses (31,405) (27,885)
THER Administrative expenses (108,683) (92,208)
BB ERNREREE Impairment losses on fixed assets 10(d) (16,406) (16,733)
KEYEMGERE Valuation loss on investment properties 10(a) (607) (781)
Fed P Profit from operations 180,171 137,055
RbE A A Finance costs 5(a) (70) (785)
B A A Profit before taxation 5 180,101 136,270
Frisat Income tax 6(a) (36,134) (28,659)
AT RERREREN Profit for the year attributable to
AEERF equity shareholders of the Company 143,967 107,611
BREF Earnings per share 9
ER Basic 114.13{lcents 85.7 1{llicents
B Diluted 113.351llicents 84.811llicents

F8AEF 162 BB A R Rk m) — [
Do BN RIREFRRAA B FEBE

BRI FE23(b) °

RIREEEERDH

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The notes on pages 84 to 162 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of

the Company are set out in note 23(b).



SmEEERER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BHE_T-AF=A=1T—HIFEABEIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—T-1F —E2-EF
2015 2014
Fr Fit
$'000 $'000
RDFREZREEN Profit for the year attributable to
AEERA equity shareholders of the Company 143,967 107,611
AFEEHMRERE : Other comprehensive income for the year:
B 1% A[RE B DA Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
PBaayEE - profit or loss:
BE T E AT E A F R Exchange differences on translation of financial
WIS AME H =58 statements of Mainland China subsidiaries 146 1,271
AN EERREGARFEE Total comprehensive income for the year
EHNRARE attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company 144,113 108,882

FOAZE F12E MM B A B IREAM —  The notes on pages 84 to 162 form part of these financial

2o o statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZT—HAF=A=+—RHABKIIT)
At 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—B-RF —T—mF
2015 2014
fEE T Tt
Note $'000 $'000
FREBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets 10(a)
— BB — Investment properties 40,780 57,329
—H b - HESAER — Other property, plant and equipment 335,403 339,600
— R ERIEE A — Interests in leasehold land held for
A FH E RS own use under operating leases 6,828 7,039
383,011 403,968
RS Goodwill 11 1,001 1,001
BEfREESES Rental deposits paid 51,470 51,048
Hiv & E Other financial assets 12 8,835 8,826
BRIERIBE B Deferred tax assets 21(b) 427 1,957
444,744 466,800
RENEE Current assets
RBEFENERSEE Non-current assets held for sale 13 19,283 =
=7E Inventories 14(a) 38,517 30,820
JE Uk BR 2R AN EL b LU R Trade and other receivables 15 60,373 56,823
HEhemEE Other financial assets 12 89 7,394
AT U [B] AN HAFR 3R Current tax recoverable 21(a) 72 54
SRITFERFIR S Bank deposits and cash 16 419,022 326,058
537,356 421,149
REAE Current liabilities
FERTBR FRANE A FE AR Trade and other payables 17 290,972 265,307
RITER Bank loans 18 4,387 9,852
JERT A HATR 18 Current tax payable 21(a) 12,824 10,034
EE Provisions 22 11,664 8,575
319,847 293,768
REEEFE Net current assets 217,509 127,381
EEAERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 662,253 594,181

78 RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

\
R
N

—E-RFZA=+—HAEEYIR)

At 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

- —F-mE
2015 2014
MosE T Tt
Note $'000 $'000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities

RITER Bank loans 18 6,636 11,065
EERIESE Deferred tax liabilities 21(b) 16,924 14,984
S HEeRE Rental deposits received 1,765 1,368
P Provisions 22 36,764 31,502
62,089 58,919
EEERE NET ASSETS 600,164 535,262

EARNGFEE Capital and reserves 23
&R Share capital 126,341 125,465
&l Reserves 473,823 409,797
R TOTAL EQUITY 600,164 535,262

BEFeN _T—RHFANA-+=H#&AEWL Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

Bi

D

AJEH o

EHE
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HITERE

Executive Chairman

84ZE 5162 B H M B AR B 75 R ) — &6

o

23 June 2015.

The notes on pages 84 to 162 form part of these financial

statements.

97954

Chan Chee Shing

TTIECAR L,

Chief Executive Officer
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meERBER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE_T-AF=A=1T—HIFEABEEIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ARARERREE DD

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

LA
BEY
Bx RhEE ArEE  EiER  BREERE  RIEH &g
Land and
buildings
Share Share Capital  Exchange revaluation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
fitst T T T T T T T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
W=Z-=£mA-A At 1 April 2013 125,178 4,458 5112 3414 768 380,769 519,699
BE-Z-ME=A=1-A Changes in equity for year
LEENERSD ended 31 March 2014
REFEH Profit for the year - - - - ~ 07611 107611
Efh2ERE Other comprehensive income - - - - -
TEERENERE Total comprehensive income for the year = = - 1,271 - 107611 108882
REBREAEETHRG Shares issued under share option scheme 23(c)) 946 6,698 - = - - T
%8R Issue expenses - 48) B - - _ @)
FRERHANRE Dividends approved in respect of the previous year 23(b)ii) - - - - - (61,500  (61,500)
REEEERARS Dividends declared in respect of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - - (28880)  (28,880)
INESEEHRG BERHRS  Equity-settled share-based transactions 5(0), 23(c)) - 1461 (1446) - = - 15
BEA SRR Repurchase of own shares
-EFEE - par velue paid 23(c)i) (659) - - - - - (659)
—BREENRFHA ~ premium and transaction costs paid 23(c)(i) - (9.891) - - - - 9891
R-E-BEZR=1-H At 31 March 2014 125,465 2,678 3,666 4,685 768 398000 535262
RIREFEEERAF



meERBER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE_T-AF=A=1T—HIFEABEIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

KARRERRELHD
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
187
o)
Ra  ROEE ExRt  EXRE EfRE  REEN i
Land and
buildings
Share Share  Capital Exchange revaluation  Retained
capital ~ premium  reserve  reserve reserve profits Total
fits T T T T T T T
Note §000 $'000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000
R-E-mEMA-A At 1 April 2014 125,465 2,678 3,666 4,685 768 398,000 535262
BE-Z-1F=fA=1-A Changes in equity for year
LEENERSD ended 31 March 2015
RER &R Profit for the year - - - - - U397 143967
Efh2ERE Other comprehensive income - - - 146 - - 146
TEEEAYEEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 146 - 3967 144113
REERE 2R RN Shares issued under share option scheme 23(0)) 978 6,122 - - - - 7,100
%8R Issue expenses - (51) - - - . (51)
FERBIERRS Dividends approved in respect of the previous year 23(b)i) - - - - - (49,295)  (49,295)
REEEERARS Dividends declared in respect of the current year 23(0)) - - - - - (35370)  (35370)
INERESRMRG AERNRS  Equity-settled share-based transactions 5(b), 23(c)(i) - 1,836 (1,692) - - - 144
BEASRA Repurchase of own shares
-BNEE ~ par value paid 23(c)i) (102) - - - - - (102)
—BRREARSHA — premium and transaction costs paid 23(0)i) - (1,637 - - - - (163
R=B-Zf=A=t-A At31 March 2015 126,341 8948 1974 4831 768 457302 600,164
FRAEF162 AWM B AT BIREAM—3ZL  The notes on pages 84 to 162 form part of these financial
e statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE_T—AF=RA=1+—RLEFEUABEITR)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—g-5f BT
2015 2014
MizE r Fr Fr T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RezH Operating activities
BB AR Profit before taxation 180,101 136,270
FARER : Adjustments for:
ETEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 5(c), 10(@) 82,128 75,940
NS ERERIESR Amortisation of interests in leasehold land

Rt S held for own use under operating leases ~ 5(c), 10(a) 21 212
BT EERNRESE Impairment losses on fixed assets 10(d) 16,406 16,733
BARBETAEEN Change in fair value of other financial assets

Hih e sEER at fair value through profit or loss

DA EEEE 5(a) (260) Al
BARBEABRN Change in fair value of other financial

Hir e pa Er) liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

AnEEES 5@) (174) (350)
FEBA Interest expense 5(a) 504 964
FISHA Interest income 4 (6,684) (4,792)
BitiR/(BE) R4 Provision for long service payments made/

REE%ERE (reversed) 22(a) 839 (6,483)
REHMETEENEEFE  Netloss on disposal of other fixed assets 4 5,218 15,007
REMENBESE Valuation loss on investment properties 10(b) 607 781
MR EH ARG Equity-settled share-based payment expenses

RERAXL 5(b) 144 15

SEESRPHLEEA Operating profit before changes in working

capital 279,040 234,468
BEESMNEE . Changes in working capital:
BEOEN) RS (Increase)/decrease in inventories (7,697) 773
BRA&EIEM Increase in rental deposits paid (1,177) (6,831)
FEMRER A E A FE YR (Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables

() /7 (2,437) 2,206

R IR A b B SR A0 Increase in trade and other payables 21,418 20,287
Bl SEEEm Increase in rental deposits received 290 335
DERRERESES Provision for long service payments utilised 22(a) (1,079) (637)
CERBERRERS Provision for reinstatement costs utilised 22(b) (3,158) (1,729
REERELNES Cash generated from operations 285,200 248872
BUHE Interest received 6,324 4,438
oRFE Interest paid (505) (967)
BEEFIEE Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (29,890) (28,187)
TETHELNESFELE  Net cash generated from operating

activities carried forward 261,129 224,156

82 RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



mERERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BHE_T-AF=A=1T—HIFEABEIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—2-af —F-mF
2015 2014
MizE r Fr Fr Tr
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RASEEHEENESFE  Net cash generated from operating
activities brought forward 261,129 224,156
REEH Investing activities
BARMSRHEERNR Payment for purchase of other financial assets - (25,067)
BEA & REEMSHE Proceeds from redemption of other financial
assets 7,565 8,828
BAETEEMNT Payment for purchase of fixed assets (87,618) (74,995)
HEEMEEEE Net proceeds from disposal of other fixed assets
SR HHE 1,118 56
REZHFANESEE Net cash used in investing activities (78,935) (91,178)
RMEEE Financing activities
REER R BIET Proceeds from shares issued under share option
RAFERE scheme 23(c)) 7,100 7,644
BARNAELNER Expenses incurred in connection with the issue
of shares (51) (48)
BRI Payment in relation to repurchase of shares 23(c)ii) (1,739) (10,550)
BARRE Dividends paid 23(b) (84,665) (90,380)
BERRTER Repayment of bank loans (18,494) (5,077)
HMBTER Drawdown of bank loans 8,600 -
REEDFANR SRR Net cash used in financing activities (89,249) (98,411)
ReAReSENEMTE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 92,945 34,567
REA—-BWEENAELZEY  Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 326,058 290,992
EX#BHTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 19 499
REA=+-ANESE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March
NREEEN 16 419,022 326,058

° statements.

FRAEF162 AWM B AT BIREAM—3ZL  The notes on pages 84 to 162 form part of these financial
)
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(BRIE=AEH

- BRPPGLAEEESR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
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RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

1

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

=

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2015 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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FEERIBE(E)

(b) AEHKRREEE(E)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

— Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

— Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets
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- BRI ABESIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
Impacts of the adoption of the new or amended HKFRSs are
discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in
HKAS 32. The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as they are consistent with the policies
already adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among
them, the amendments expand the disclosures required for
an impaired asset or cash generating unit whose recoverable
amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as they are consistent with the policies already
adopted by the Group.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”,
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) came into
operation at the start of the Company’s current financial year.
The adoption of the requirements has primarily impacted the
presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements. These changes mainly include the
presentation of the Company’s statement of financial
position as a note disclosure instead of a primary statement,
updating any references to the Companies Ordinance to refer
to the current Companies Ordinance and replacing certain
terminology no longer used in the Companies Ordinance with
terminology used in HKFRS.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(1)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

1(0).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Held-to-maturity investment

=

Held-to-maturity investment represents debt security that
the Group has the positive ability and intention to hold to
maturity. This investment is initially stated at fair value, which
is their transaction price unless fair value can be more reliably
estimated using valuation techniques whose variables include
only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below
and it is subsequently stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(1)).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in the profit
or loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 1(u)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(j)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied for other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in note 1()).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(1)):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land classified as held under operating leases (see note
1()); and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings
situated thereon

30 - 50 years

- Leasehold improvements The remaining term of

the tenancy leases

- Air-conditioning plant The remaining term of

the tenancy leases
— Furniture and equipment 10% — 20% per annum
- Motor vehicles 15% per annum
— Computer system 25% per annum

Others

10% per annum

No depreciation is provided on initial purchases of cutlery
and utensils which are capitalised. Costs of subsequent
replacements are charged to profit or loss in the year when
the expenditure is incurred.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 1(h)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(1)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables and other financial assets
that are stated at amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss of trade and
other receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment losses
recognised in respect of trade debtors included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

investments in subsidiaries; and

goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measureable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the
asset is available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for investment
properties as explained below), are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amounts and fair value less costs to sell. For
investment properties, even if held for sale, would continue
to be measured in accordance with the policy set out in note
1(h).

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset
is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(t)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the trinomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On the vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

(s) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

97




B RS ER R I E

Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRIEZHE - BRIBIABESITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Bt BE(E)

H‘&é%%*ﬁ%ﬂﬁ?ﬂh)ﬁﬁ?ﬁk TR
BRARBEARE CDHEIAECHES
EREHHRRAETeBHEZETE
ENERNHERTE  RIFRFVER
TRFE  MEAZEVENHERA
MER - RIEZFMEREBARDOEE
MEBEEREERE  MIFEBLHEH
R EPTBEMIBER  CHREREENE
ERREERABRASHENARER
FEESA  REBECHITINBEHR
BEELERTHMRKRGE - BEHREE
EEBEY PRS-

AEEeEEERSHREMRELEREA
BENRATHE - RAEERHIH
A BEER1S 2 S FE A 4 A A SR AN AR B EY

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will

M EZLkT)%IEﬁFE'JﬁEE%%E be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Fapd : ERNRBEBAEIGER Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
W ERDEF] - BRERY @%E@EQLIEI 0 probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.
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Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
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tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:
— BHNMEEEHEAE: $ GIE%N — in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the

SEFIZFELEREE - XA
RERZEEMFTEZARE &+ X

- EREREEEHRAG: GEEEH
BEMAER RS EERIATE
RIERBBHAEIRAR

— FR—EHRERE X

— TRMEHREE - ELEETE
EHESEESREE KERLTHE

Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities

BEFEREAAREELERIBEE or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
ERAREMERA - RF8EA intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the

AEREREHHRBELEENSTEE current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
HMBIBEaE RAKERZEE simultaneously.

MBEZAE -
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1 EEEHBEZ) 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) BELMPKER  EENKEEE () Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) BE1EL B BHER (i) Financial quarantees issued

MBREREOFTEBLREHTA
(BIFER A ) XS HEERH - DAR(E
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R EROAABEERMERR
H b FE 5K 1) 4A TE 2R S R AT LR
A EFHMBEREERNAA
EBlE R2RBURBERIFRS
T RERE B B (A R )
EORBRANEEZBEELMGR S
AR BEBERNBATES
Y B B B R M) R B R BRI SR AR AR Y
1B T & 77 Py e R O {51 4 = (41
BERI SEbIAET) » BUEHIERMC W
FEEHEEMS - HESRRA
SEERNZBEENBRER -
WMRLBEC W EIEE - AT
th & 7 fa] IR AT WA ) 46 T B2 B A0
RSP HER

MR BEERZNEREES
EEREBARBRPEEAEEL
IS EREOUA o N RN E
WVERMIFTAE AR EIREEEHER
MAEERBEBER - AR)AAE
EREMEBERSBIEESNEMEE
R E A R SRR BB HERA
RSB (AVBERNSERER
STEEES SR BFEREME
1)) R 24 o

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specific payments to reimburse
the beneficiary to the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specific debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group or the Company issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and other
payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at
the time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm'’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not be
available, where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with note 1(t)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently carried
in trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

(u) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

()

(ii)

Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages
is recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discounts.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in profit or loss on an accrual

basis.
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FEERIBE(E)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while that
for subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China is Renminbi.
The presentation currency of the Group is Hong Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
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1 EEEHBEZ) 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(x) BB (x) Related parties
(1) IEBATAL  BIZALTHZAL (1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

TR RSB - related to the Group if that person:

(i) EHERERIARER (i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) HREEEERTEN + K (i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) e ANE B AN E B A R AR (i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
EEAB o Group or the Group’s parent.

(2) W E TIEMIGH  BIEXESR (2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

EREEHBEE T - conditions applies:

() ZERBEAEERER—% (i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
(BNEERAF - WEBARMBZR group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
AR REA ) fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) " XERBES—EBRNBELQAF (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
HEECE(HES—EBEBMES entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
EETKERARINEE RARINE a group of which the other entity is a member).
EE) -

(i) IRBERBER—FE=Aa&D (iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
% o

(iv) " RERBEF-FEEMNEED (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
¥ mME—EBEF-FEEN other entity is an associate of the third entity.
NI

(V) ZEBRAASEIIEREAEE (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
R R BRI ES R benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
RH BB R B AETE o related to the Group.

(vi) ZEBXE EMENIBANMRE (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
A Pl g R o identified in (1).

(vii) FIE(NO)ERNFTRTE A T H % (viia person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
EREEAXENIZZER(K over the entity or is a member of the key management
ZEREARNBERERASR - personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

—ZEARERREZEARERER Close members of the family of a person are those family
REGUAIEHBZBEASTZEATE members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
BIRBERK B ° by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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1
(y)

(b)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group'’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 11, 20 and 24 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment, fair value of share options granted and financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to assess whether there is
any indication that property, plant and equipment may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the property, plant and equipment is estimated. Changes
in facts and circumstances may result in revisions to the
conclusion of whether an indication of impairment exists and
revised estimates of recoverable amounts, which would affect
profit or loss in future years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment other than cutlery and utensils
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The Group reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the Group's
historical experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are material
changes from previous estimates.
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(0

Accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 10(b), the investment properties are
stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional surveyors after taking into
consideration the net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In determining the fair value, the surveyors have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates including
current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition and expected future market rents. In relying
on the valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market condition.

Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC taxes

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") taxes. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for such taxes. There are
transactions during the ordinary course of business, for which
calculation of the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
tax provisions in the year in which such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets depends on the
management’s expectation of future taxable profit that will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Provision for long service payments

As explained in note 22(a), the Group makes provision for
long service payments in accordance with the requirement of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The Group has based
the estimation on its recent employees’ statistics and adopted
certain assumptions in assessing the provision for long service
payments. It is possible that these assumptions adopted by
the Group in assessing the provision for long service payments
may not be indicative of the future situation. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in future
years.

Provision for reinstatement costs

As explained in note 22(b), the Group makes provision
for reinstatement costs based on the best estimate of the
expected costs to be incurred upon expiry of the respective
rental agreements, which are subject to uncertainty and might
differ from the actual costs incurred. Any increase or decrease
in the provision would affect profit or loss in future years.




3 BEETMOBPWE
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AEENTIZXBREEREENYE
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EBEMESEA - @XBOOMAT :

Turnover and segment reporting

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments.

Turnover represents the sales value of food and beverages sold
to customers and rental income. An analysis of turnover is as
follows:

—E-AF —Z-NF

2015 2014

Fr Tt

$'000 $'000

RmEkRmEE Sale of food and beverages 2,239,027 2,032,794
YERE Property rental 5,858 4,925
2,244,885 2,037,719

EUAEBIEEBNE—SHERE
mT

(b) &b E
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EOER o
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RESE o
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RERESE
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XHE YEBEIRAEM-

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed below:

Segment reporting
The Group manages its businesses by two divisions, namely
Hong Kong restaurants and Mainland China restaurants, which
are organised by geographical location. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has identified the following two reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.
— Hong Kong restaurants: this segment operates fast
food restaurants in
Hong Kong.
this segment operates fast
food restaurants in
Mainland China.

— Mainland China restaurants:

Other segments generate profits mainly from leasing of
investment properties and include corporate expenses.
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3 BETMOBEWEE) 3 Turnover and segment reporting (continued)
(b) P HBERE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) DEFE (i) Segment results
REEGRETHRERABRTS For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
ERERZFEREDMBHOESE - A allocating resources between segments, the Group's most
@ D EBRIR R ETTH BB EIR senior executive management monitors the results to each
pa) v reportable segment on the following bases:
SEZEREDHHRARZHEIR Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
BELEDEMEENRATNS BB segments with reference to revenue generated by those
E’éiéﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]é?ﬁﬁiziﬂ’ﬁﬁéi segments and expenses incurred by those segments
BiEBRAMmME or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.
%zi RBRBMAT D MBEFTE - R Performance is measured based on segment profit before
FEERDERIER W ARD B ER taxation. Items not specifically attributable to individual
%“‘u‘ﬁ ° segments are not allocated to the reporting segments.
EEERTWIER S HEMNN D In addition to receiving segment information concerning
HERI  EGBREHEARA(E segment profit, management is provided with segment
R B E M EEWA ) M EHE KA information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
(BERYAAE BITKA - He - revenue) and cost of sales (including food cost, labour
ZMANFE)NDEER - HE 2 cost, rent and rates and depreciation). The inter-segment
WRXSGEHEEEXRBKBRET 2% transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms
WITMEREEEBR  WREED and were priced with reference to prevailing market prices
R ARTETT © and in the ordinary course of business.
FEEESETHREEAB N ER Segment assets information is not reported or used by the
EHEREEDHEENER - Group’s most senior executive management.
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3 Turnover and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results (continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended

AR e 31 March 2015 and 2014 is set out below.
EEEE PERRE EftA3 g
Hong Kong Mainland China

restaurants restaurants Other segments Total
“E-1% TR -T-1f ZT-MF -F-1F —Z-PF -E-5F CT-|F
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
i i r r r r r S
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RESNFEFAMA Revenue from external customers 2,068,587 1,865,168 170,440 167,626 5,858 4925 2,244,885 2,037,719
REEMAHBHRA Inter-segment revenue - - - - 5000 4761 5,000 4,761
HEFHRA Reportable segment revenue 2,068,587 1,865,168 170,440 167,626 10,858 9,686 2,249,885 2,042,480
FENTERN/ (BR) Reportable segment profit/(loss) 196,653 159,764 (8,207) ~ (14,218) 8,234 8,059 196,680 153,605
HSHA Interest income 6,576 4,351 108 441 - - 6,684 4792
BOERFIEER Interest expense on bank loans 504 964 - - - = 504 964
FTEANEH Depreciation and amortisation 73389 66,208 8,054 8,936 896 1008 82339 76,152
BEEENRESE Impairment losses on fixed assets 2,339 4102 14,067 12,631 - - 16,406 16,733
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3 BETMOBEWEE) 3 Turnover and segment reporting (continued)
(b) 7 EPshE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(if) ¥R 5 585 FII) #1 B (i) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit
—E-AfF —T—UF
2015 2014
Fr T
$°000 $'000
pew il Profit
BB AT RS 59 7P A Reportable segment profit before taxation 196,680 153,605
BARBES ABRNEM  Change in fair value of other financial assets
TREENAAEEE at fair value through profit or loss 260 (171)
BAREES ABRMEM  Change in fair value of other financial liabilities
TRAENRAAEEES at fair value through profit or loss 174 350
B YEGERE Valuation loss on investment properties (607) (781)
ElE B ERNREEE Impairment losses on fixed assets (16,406) (16,733)
R RIAR & w7l Consolidated profit before taxation 180,101 136,270
(i) 1 [E B+ (i) Geographic information
TRIEBEBOANEBRKEINEER The following table sets out information about the
FHRBRARMAEBENEETEER geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
HE([EFTIERHEE | T external customers and (i) the Group's fixed assets and
BE e RERAEM SRR ERH goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
RESE BB Z D - nEBRIE location of customers is based on the location at which
FEHRBEEEIPNETEE  H the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
FriEth R IR Z EEMN BT geographical location of the specified non-current assets
Zly BRI TEIRRBEEED is based on the physical location of the assets in the case
MEE - HrEmBIRRRAEDE of fixed assets, and the location of the operation to which
EMEEREE D - they are allocated in the case of goodwill.
REIMBEEHIUA BEFRBEE
Revenue from external customers Specified non-current assets
— —E—meF —E-AF —E—mE
2015 2014 2015 2014
5 Fr 5 ¥
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BB Hong Kong
(FEfb) (place of domicile) 2,069,990 1,866,260 319,774 320,835
AR A Mainland China 174,895 171,459 64,238 84,134
2,244,885 2,037,719 384,012 404,969
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4 Hlg A FEIRFH

4 Other revenue and net losses

—E-EHF —TmF
2015 2014
Fr T
$'000 $'000
Hiplg A Other revenue
FBUTA Interest income 6,684 4,792
Hig5 B FRE Other net losses
REEMEE B EREIRFE Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (5,218) (15,007)
b H AR F Net foreign exchange gain 83 875
BERREEESR Electric and gas range incentives 3,592 4,028
S HREE SR Profit on sale of redemption gifts 1,177 909
RERIHER(M4G),/ Compensation (paid to)/received from
IERZE F B E landlords upon early termination
of tenancy leases (4,704) 757
HAth Others 1,411 2,013
(3,659) (6,425)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

5 FRIRAIEF
BB RS A E R (GEA) -

5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

—2-IF —T-MmEF
2015 2014
Fr T
$'000 $'000
(a) RERAE (a) Finance costs
RARBEABRNEM Change in fair value of other financial assets
SREENARBEZS at fair value through profit or loss (260) 171
BRARBEABZHE M Change in fair value of other financial liabilities
SREBNARBEZS at fair value through profit or loss (174) (350)
RITERFISER Interest expense on bank loans 504 964
70 785
(b) BIHA (b) Staff costs
RERFEARFT IR Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 28,322 25,469
LA R 45 LA RR D Equity-settled share-based
RETER TR payment expenses 144 15
e TENEMEF Salaries, wages and other benefits 629,754 547,216
658,220 572,700
(o) HftEE (c) Other items
FERA (M) Cost of inventories (note) 581,642 541,053
BETFEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 82,128 75,940
2 HERER RN Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
T A E R 8 held for own use under operating leases 211 212
ZEED e Auditor’s remuneration 3,554 3,450
MENKEHEER Operating lease charges on properties
—HEEEMNHE — Minimum lease payments 310,009 292,313
- EEE - Contingent rentals 16,088 14,731
fEl & Rental receivable
—REMEREEI L — Investment properties, less direct
220,0007T(=ZF—/M outgoings of $220,000
4 :181,0007T) (2014: $181,000) (4,235) (3,652)
—Hif B mE ~ Other operating sub-leases (1,403) (1,092)
HgBFn I XEAR Cost of subsequent replacement of cutlery
w=MHER and utensils 9,108 10,008

M - FERARERBEA o

RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Note: The cost of inventories represents food costs.




6 HFEWSRFATHMRER 6 Income tax in the consolidated income statement
(a) IrEWRRITRMTHIES ¢ (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
—E-RF —Z—F
2015 2014
Fr FT
$000 $'000
HTE - B EREH Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
NEELERE Provision for the year 32,571 27,462
DNEFEEBTR,CBF)  Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 91 (26)
32,662 27,436
AEABIE — P E Current tax — PRC
LA FE BT Over-provision in respect of prior years - (8)
IEFEBLIE (BiEE21(b)) Deferred tax (note 21(b))
| TR Ouigisilen sl ketass] o i soray sl | 3472 1257
36,134 28,659
T E-—FEENFTEFER E{%%E$ The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2015 is calculated
FEEREEETRENIA165% (ZF at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
—PO%F : 16.5% )T KT E - for the year.
HAAEERRAMERIATEENR No provision has been made for PRC corporate income tax
SHEE - ol AR AR EE L E R for 2015 as the Group’s Mainland China operations have
ﬂ A HEFIRE - E—RFERIEA cumulated tax losses brought forward from prior years to
HAMBE([RE|DDERERHER - A offset the estimated assessable profits. No provision has
$’¥ E LR B E SIS &SRB been made for the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
FEE AW EsiIE —E—EER corporate income tax for 2014 as the Group’s Mainland China
B> ETERER - operations sustained a loss for taxation purpose.
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REKRRATHMRBRE)
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5

6 Income tax in the consolidated income statement

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

HER applicable tax rates:
—E-RE T —F
2015 2014
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
G50y Profit before taxation 180,101 136,270
1%5816.5%(=Z—PU4F : 16.5%)H) Notional Hong Kong Profits Tax
MEAENLEBBHNER calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) 29,717 22,485
TS —HREERLEENRBAR Effect of different tax rate of a
HRATRB R 2 subsidiary operating in another
tax jurisdiction (505) 69
AAMHE S H T IR & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 3,364 2,314
BERRANTREZZ Tax effect of non-taxable income (1,306) (241)
FA LA AR Z e FIR Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax
EBENTRIETE losses previously not recognised (1,129) =
SRHERR m A {58 A A T AR TE Tax effect of unused tax losses
EENIERE not recognised . 4,032
REERME MR ERZNTIELE Tax effect of other temporary
differences not recognised 34 34
N EFAILERAOTIETE Tax effect of wavier of intra-group
balances 5,868 -
EFEEET R CBH) Under/(over)-provision in respect
of prior years 91 (34)
BRI N Actual tax expense 36,134 28,659
RIREFEEERAF



7 EEMe
RIBEEBCR AHES ) E383HMC A A
(BREEENmER)RIDE285IHR
SEMewT

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation is as follows:

Exne  AENAE

Directors’

fee

i
$'000

2015
Total

r
$000

B7ES
ERGELE
REREE
Kt/ MA
*9TES
REBELE
BUFHTES
REFEE
HEEEL

ERFEL
FREELE

Executive Directors

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

Mr Chan Chee Shing

Ms Mak Yee Mei

Non-executive Director

Mr Ng Chi Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo
Mr Peter Wan Kam To

170
150
150

180

190
170
170
240

9,140
4,937
2,701

180

190
170
170
240

1,420

17,728
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7 EFEM&(E) 7 Directors’ remuneration (continued)
¥e 28 MR B RiRitE —T-mE
EZHe  MEDAR MEEL  ERNIH (530 b
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits ~ Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme 2014
fee in kind bonus payments  contributions Total
Fr Fr Fr Fr i Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(W3E)
(note)
HiTES Executive Directors
BRBEE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 4,860 2,994 - 15 8,039
ERSEE Mr Chan Chee Shing 150 1,79 2,246 38 15 4,245
Eéath/vR Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 1,463 749 34 15 2,411
FHTES Non-executive Director
REBTAE Mr Ng Chi Keung 180 - - = - 180
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
REEERE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 - = = - 190
ZEEEL Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 = - - - 170
BERRELE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 170 = - - - 170
FRBEEE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 = - - - 240
1,420 8,119 5,989 72 45 15,645
MaE : ARRD BERH SN RIERIERAQ A Note: Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share
MBS I REET &I T 2 BB (5T options granted to the Directors under the Company’s share
BE - ELBERENBEIIRBH T option scheme. The value of these share options is measured
1TSS AR EBE AR D AEEE according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
YT GHEeTHETE  WIREX based payment transactions as set out in note 1(r)(ii) and, in
HBE - B2 HBERENRRTHEE accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse
W F % TR 2 T AR A EE 25t amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity
BV O SR EH T E - instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.
BRAELEYHZNFS  BIEAE Details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
FHEBENTERTMEE @ HFRE terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under
FeWREP[BERERTE | — R the paragraph “Share Option Scheme” in the Report of the
2004 ° Directors and note 20.

114 RWEEEBRAF
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EmMe AL

ERfiMeReSHOALH = (=ZF
—MF =) REE FRENMS
BN RE7 - MG (ZF—MF -

8 Individuals with highest emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2014: three) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

ML) AR 42zEnT - other two individuals (2014: two individuals) is as follows:
—E-8F —E—F
2015 2014
T T
$'000 $'000
e REMME Salaries and other emoluments 2,740 2,576
LARR (7 A EL R 69 32 A+ Share-based payments 130 205
BIRETEIH R Retirement scheme contributions 35 30
2,905 2,811

ML (ZF—MF : WOMERS AL

The emoluments of the two individuals (2014: two individuals)

BMESEUATEER : with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:
—E-F —F—lE
2015 2014
A" AEL
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
1,000,001, 2 1,500,0007T $1,000,001 - $1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001 %22,000,0007T $1,500,001 - $2,000,000 1 1
2 2
9 BERERF 9 Earnings per share

(a) BRERAFN

BREABFRZRBAFENAR A
I 3/ A% BE 2 A% 3R FE {6 0% F11143,967,000
(= Z — P9 £ :107,611,0007T ) -
UERBBTEBROMEFHH
126,147,000 ( — & — g £ :
125,548,000/% ) st &R

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $143,967,000 (2014: $107,611,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 126,147,000
shares (2014: 125,548,000 shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:
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9 BEREFE)
(a) BRERRF (&)

9 Earnings per share (continued)
(a) Basic earnings per share (continued)

TRARE INBET S - Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

—E-RHE —E—OF

2015 2014

RO EE D& E

Number of Number of

shares shares

TR Fh&

‘000 ‘000

RUA—BHHBEEITE R Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 125,465 125,178

ITEERENTE Effect of share options exercised 732 780

EERMNHZE Effect of shares repurchased (50) (410)
R=A=+—H® Weighted average number

3 3E A% N RE 19 8 of ordinary shares at 31 March 126,147 125,548

(b) HRREE AR
EREERFZIZB ARG LB ELR
% B e {4 F143,967,0007T( —F —Y
#F :107,611,0007T) @ ARG ERARA
hnkE S 15 80127,008,0000%( — & — M
£F : 126,888,000A% )5t &0 :

R 8 (85 -

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $143,967,000 (2014: $107,611,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 127,008,000
shares (2014: 126,888,000 shares), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):

—E-REF —ZT—F

2015 2014

R EE S 4E

Number of Number of

shares shares

TR T

‘000 ‘000
At EBREARB TR Weighted average number of ordinary shares

B INE T used in calculating basic earnings per share 126,147 125,548

AR RIRBARR RN Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares

FEARE ST B N E BT under the Company'’s share option scheme

TiERR 2 for nil consideration 861 1,340
RESTE SRS R AT Weighted average number of ordinary shares

LB INRE T E used in calculating diluted earnings per share 127,008 126,888

1 16 RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



10 BEEE 10 Fixed assets
(a) (a)
ey
e5i(g=
HELH  EENE RS
MEEY HRIR EnEE NGt REWE DB B
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Leasehold use under
landand  Leasehold Other Investment  operating
buildings  improvements assets  Sub-total  properties leases Total
T T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BASMEE : Cost or valuation:
RZE—=FNA—H At 1 April 2013 102,797 279,710 477,842 860,349 58,110 8,098 926,557
fE 5 A% Exchange adjustments 122 748 873 1,743 - - 1,743
®E Additions = 31,228 47,101 78,329 = = 78,329
& Disposals - (40,032) (26,433)  (66,465) - - (66,465)
SHBEMEI0b) Loss on revaluation (Note 10(b)) - - = = (781) = (781)
R=ZF—M&E=A=1+—H  At31March 2014 102,919 271,654 499383 873,956 57,329 8098 939,383
(L Representing:
A Cost 102,919 271,654 499,383 873,956 - 8,098 882,054
BE-—T—F Valuation - 2014 = = = = 57,329 - 57,329
102,919 271,654 499,383 873,956 57,329 8,098 939,383
SENE  BHREE Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment:
RZE—=FNA—H At 1 April 2013 39,231 189,639 263,369 492,239 - 847 493,086
i Exchange adjustments 76 401 369 846 = = 846
FEREREH Charge for the year 2,591 35,145 38,204 75,940 - 212 76,152
REBEFE0d) Impairment losses (Note 10(d)) - 6,417 10,316 16,733 = = 16,733
SR Written back on disposal - (34389 (17,013) (51,402 - - (51,402)
RZZ—ME=F=+—H  At31March2014 41,898 197,213 295245 534,356 = 1,059 535415
BREFME : Net book value:
RZZ-—WE=A=+—H  At31March2014 61,021 74,441 204,138 339,600 57,329 7,039 403,968

117




B ISR R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRIE=AEH

- BRI ABESIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

10 BERE (&)

10 Fixed assets (continued)

(a) (#&) (a) (continued)
e cyiil
EFER
HEL HEWE Jizk:aiES=
FgEy HRIR HhEE N BEWE g Fak
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Leasehold use under
landand  Leasehold Other Investment  operating
buildings  improvements assets  Sub-total  properties leases Total
T T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RAZEE Cost or valuation:
RZT—MEMA—H At 1 April 2014 102,919 271,654 499,383 873,956 57,329 8,098 939,383
[ AR Exchange adjustments 5 42 47 % - - 9%
H2E Additions - 41,760 62,224 103,984 - - 103,984
HeE Disposals - (46,197) (39,500) (85,697) - - (85,697)
ENABARAREN Redlassified to non-current assets
FEmenEE (fizE3) held for sale (Note 13) (4,004) - - (4,004 (15,942) - (19,946)
EfEER(HE10(b) Loss on revaluation (Note 10(b)) - - - - (607) - (607)
R-Z—RE=A=+—H At31March 2015 98,920 267,259 522,154 888,333 40,780 8,098 937,211
K& Representing:
(%N Cost 98,920 267,259 522,154 888,333 - 8,098 896,431
HE-—ZT—1F Valuation - 2015 - - - - 40,780 - 40,780
98,920 267,259 522,154 888,333 40,780 8,098 937,211
it e BERAE Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment:
R=ZF—MEMA—H At 1 April 2014 41,898 197,213 295,245 534,356 - 1,059 535,415
i i % Exchange adjustments 5 29 30 64 - - 64
FEMEREH Charge for the year 4146 36857 41,125 82,128 - 21 82,339
BN EABAEREN Reclassified to non-current assets
FEnEERE(FE13) held for sale (Note 13) (663) - - (663) = - (663)
AERE(E0) Impairment losses (Note 10(d)) - 7,026 9380 16,406 - - 16,406
R B Written back on disposal - (45,957) (33,404) (79,361) - - (79,361)
RZE—RAF=A=F+—H  At31March 2015 45,386 195,168 312,376 552,930 - 1,270 554,200
BREFE Net book value:
R-Z—RE=A=+—H At31March 2015 53,534 72,091 209,778 335,403 40,780 6,828 383,011

RIREEEERDH

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



10 BEREE)
(a) (#&)
AEBMERNKEEOSFTOT

10 Fixed assets (continued)
(@) (continued)

is as follows:

The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the Group

—E-hF —T-mE
2015 2014
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
FHE T b FEEY (REA) Leasehold land and buildings, at cost
EEENTHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 71,090 75,095
ERBRINFP IS Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 27,830 27,824
98,920 102,919
REYE(RMEE) Investment properties, at valuation
ERANTHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong - 16,519
ERARINF S Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 40,780 40,810
40,780 57,329
DREHEREG AN Interests in leasehold land held for own use
=+ it ERE A (IREA) under operating leases, at cost
ERANTHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 8,098 8,098
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10 BIESE(E)
(b) MENARBEMNE

(i)

DA BEER

AEERBEPREEERELGFE
REMENAREE REFEE
AEEJNEREHFENNERPEE -
SZEMEMEEDH N(BBYBER
SRANDFI13% [ A4 EETE I
REN=BErAEBEER A%H
Z2RUATHETEMEANE AR
MATBRIEEMEEN  KMETE
AREEFEREMERBNER:

— E-ERGE: RAEAF-ER
BWAERIEREELBERE
ERMHEEEMSHNREHER
B)RABLAA(EE -

— F_EREE FRE_ELH
ANEBIAREF—EBHRHATER
BAE) WHEESEATAER
BABRGFEAREE - A8
Rig AMERIERRTHHIENE
AfE -

— FZERMHE RABEATATE
R ANERFERAEE-

MEREMEEN _T—HFM_
E-NE=ZA=+—B#&TEMHK -
E G TER BB S/ E 54 FT —
HEEEFTEERARET - ZA
EBRTTMHETHAERNEXER
BT BRI E W) X R0 PR M B AR
FEAEHEBNER AREEEE
B BB &8 AD & wR A S HIARETT A
ENRZEMER

RZE—RAFMN_FT—NF=ZA=
+—B  AEEREREWEHNU
FME=REBEEBRFE
LEARBESEIERDEENKE
YIHEN M E—R R EBEERTE -

RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

10 Fixed assets (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of properties
(i) Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis and the Group’s non-current assets held
for sale on a non-recurring basis are categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

All investment properties were revalued at 31 March
2015 and 2014 by an independent firm of surveyors,
Asset Appraisal Limited, who has staff with recognised
professional qualifications and relevant experience in the
location and category of investment properties being
revalued. The Group’s management has discussion with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at the end of the
reporting period.

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, all of the Group's investment
properties fall into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as
described above, except for the investment properties
classified as non-current assets held for sale which fall into
Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy as described above.




10 BEEREE)
(b) MENRABEFEE)

(i)

RABEER(E)

BHE_ZT-—RF=A=+—HILF
B ETREVENAIA(EEGE
BE-ERAEL AKERLES
TREVERE=FTLTEEW
& Bl RSREVMEREESE
ERENFRBEE  EHRSHX

10 Fixed assets (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were
investment properties transferred out of Level 3. The
Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a
third party to dispose of certain investment properties. As
such, these investment properties were transferred to non-
current assets held for sale and measured at its fair value

WARBENE ETC22EE
159 38 A7 5T 0 B 32 (8 o 75 S B A S
REARBEERZ HEREBY
B M AR ERE R -

by reference to the transaction price set out in the sale and
purchase agreement as at the end of the reporting period.
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

(i) E=ZERAABEENEH

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

L/ES3: Rl fRER M FHBENEAE g5E

Location of properties Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range

SRETAb R SESYE S HELLEVE BEYNES (6)%Z=10%
PSSR e 8 (HTa8)

Premium (discount) on (6)% to 10%

quality of the buildings

Mainland China — Commercial properties Direct comparison approach

The fair values of investment properties located
in Mainland China are determined by using direct
comparison approach with reference to the market price
of comparable properties and adjusted for building quality
and timing of the reference transactions. Higher premium
for investment properties will result in a higher fair value
measurement.

MNRFEABHRENENRAE
B REAERLBAEE  EF
ESERLYMENTE  LikSE
RHNETEENKEELAR -
REVEXZFALSRE 86K
SHAREBEAERE -

The movement of these investment properties during the
year is as follows:

BB EDENERHZDIT

BE H I #Er

Hong Kong Mainland China Total

T T T

$7000 $7000 $7000

RZE—=FMA—H At 1 April 2013 17,100 41,010 58,110
{HEEE Valuation loss (581) (200) (781)
RZE—HmFE=A=+—H At 31 March 2014 16,519 40,810 57,329
R=-Z—mEmA—A At 1 April 2014 16,519 40,810 57,329

{H1EEE Valuation loss (577) (30) (607)
B BRARAREN Reclassified to non-current

EMEEE assets held for sale (15,942) - (15,942)
R-E—hF=A=+—H At 31 March 2015 - 40,780 40,780
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10 BEREE)

10 Fixed assets (continued)

122

(© Eﬁﬂﬁ%@%@ﬁl\ B

d) EXFER -

R 5
B CBEEARVAABENTINEAR
%5]]]1 0

AEBERBHEES T

"E% ERERE IHETELE
DIEEEEEMNT W EBE- RIE

1&“’ FRAELETEENRE SR

(0

Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning
plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial purchases
of cutlery and utensils.

During the year, the Group’s management identified certain
branches which continued to under-perform and estimated
the recoverable amounts of the fixed assets of those branches.
Based on these estimates, the carrying amount of fixed assets

2 & 1816,406,00070( = & — P4 4 - was written down by $16,406,000 (2014: $16,733,000)
16,733,0007T) ° during the year.
BFEREER C EARRR 2 E R A UL The recoverable amount of two of these branches amounted
B % 58 5 7l 7,%456,00075 #11,285,000 to $456,000 and $1,285,000 based on their value in use.

TC o BRIk 2N - BT EREREEEN Apart from the above, the recoverable amounts of the
A El SN T EE remaining impaired fixed assets were minimal.

AT O EEE R AT R AR BT IR R 15%
—T-UF 13%)METHETEEE
FREEAER -

R-ZBE—HE=A=+—8  EALXE

EI oM E AR FTERITEEEANY
¥REIFEA1,622,000t(ZZF—M@
% 1 45,517,0007T) °

AEENKLHEHDIREYE - B
HEMFRH—FE2+F SAKLEHR
EHTEEHAET - AEERETA
RO EMEERRRERNKEHEE

The estimates of recoverable amount were based on the fixed
assets’ value in use, determined using a discount rate of 15%
(2014: 13%).

At 31 March 2015, the net book value of properties pledged
as security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
of the Group amounted to $1,622,000 (2014: $45,517,000).

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases initially run for one to ten years. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals. The Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

TRRFEESINT ¢ leases are receivable as follows:
S —Z-EF
2015 2014
F Tt
$'000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 5,420 4,855
—FRERAFR After 1 year but within 5 years 18,745 15,491
hFE After 5 years 17,502 =
41,667 20,346

KPSEEEBRAF

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



11 e 11 Goodwill
—E-hF —ZT—YF
2015 2014
T T
$'000 $'000
BA(RINBE—HBM=A=+—H) Cost, at 1 April and 31 March 1,001 1,001

BERENReELBTHRENR
AEBREEMRANER DA D B HE
FTRHRINREELETIT :

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGU") identified according to the location of operation and
business segment as follows:

—E-hfF —ZT—YF

2015 2014

Fr Fit

$'000 $'000

BEEE—PEAH Restaurant operation — Mainland China 1,001 1,001

ReEHETNRKESEIREER
BEE - sFEDERREEECKE
MAFHBRENRESREM - BB
TEHENRSRER Ml HEHF=X
TEHER - SEREAFBBZREELE
TR EE B RIFHERE -

AEEREENTIERR

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimate rates
stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the business in which the CGU
operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

—E-HEF —ZT—OF

2015 2014

EH= Gross margin 14% 14%
R R Growth rate 3% 3%
iR Discount rate 15% 13%

EEERBEEENEAMSEREER
BEMZE - FIERAMMEFHERRR
TTEREPTE TN — 20 MATERA T
RERAERRABRASELETHER
REVBBIITIR R

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and their expectation for market
development. The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.
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12 Ht &R EE 12 Other financial assets
—E-0F —E-EF
2015 2014
Fr T
$'000 $'000
FRBERMEE Non-current financial assets
BEZEIHEEES Held-to-maturity debt security
— I ETmEERE — Unlisted but quoted 8,835 8,826
REBERMEE Current financial assets
wEINES L Forward foreign exchange contract 89 -
RAR R Principal protected structured note
— 3 ETEERE(MIFE24@)V)) — Unlisted but quoted (note 24(a)(v)) - 7,394
8,924 16,220
ZHAARBFAENEBESBHTBEA The debt security was issued by a financial institution in
W—REeREERTT FHH-_Z—= Mainland China, denominated in Renminbi, bore interest at a
F+—A+=BZ2-_FE—N\F+—A+ rate of 3.6% per annum and had a term of five years from 13
—HAHREE RENEI6%TE - November 2013 to 13 November 2018.
RN EEEEERES -4 The principal protected structured note was issued by a
BT MRE2BRTAE(E- financial institution in Hong Kong. The interest rate was
T_FE-AAB)HETE ARKE determined with reference to the exchange rate of the United
RET o HERMEEON TR & States dollars (“USD") against Renminbi (“"RMB") at the fixing
CATH—ALEERNEZLRKE date on 6 February 2015. The structured note was redeemed
— /1 — A 3z F
B o by the financial institution during the year ended 31 March
) 2015.

124 RWEEEBRAF
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13 FAEFENERDEE

13 Non-current assets held for sale

—E-AF —E—PF

2015 2014

Fr Fr

$'000 $'000

e A EEY (5E10) Leasehold land and buildings (note 10) 3,341 =
1B ZE(MisE10) Investment properties (note 10) 15,942 =
19,283 -

EARRERBRELESETHEL
MREMREMERR  wFHELH
MRZEMRBZEDEINERBRFENIE
RBEE BHE_T—AF=-A=1—
BIEFE  NRABRE=JFILT —1H
HEZSEMENEEGZ - AR50
RZTE-AFOA=+THZEX °

14 &8
(a) LFAMBIRRKRATRNFE R

Certain leasehold land and buildings and investment properties
are presented as non-current assets held for sale following the
decision of the Company’s management to dispose of these
properties. During the year ended 31 March 2015, a sale and
purchase agreement was entered into with a third party to
dispose of these properties. The transaction was completed on
30 April 2015.

14 Inventories
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position

comprise:

—E-RF —TmF

2015 2014

Fr T

$'000 $'000

B R Food and beverages 35,163 27,273
SEFEMR © BEME R E A Consumables, packaging materials

and other sundry items 3,354 3,547

38,517 30,820

(b) ER A/ HNTFEEREITWT

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense is as follows:

—E-fEF —Z—yF

2015 2014

F5 Fi

$'000 $'000

EEFENEESRE Carrying amount of inventories sold 581,175 540,840
FEMOR Write down of inventories 467 213
581,642 541,053
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|3 A EESIR)

15 FEMAR R0 b FE M 3%

15 Trade and other receivables

—E-IF —E-EF

2015 2014

T T+t

$'000 $'000

R UK PR R L A e U R Trade and other debtors 8,814 9,215
BN AREERS Rental and utility deposits paid 31,556 29,485
20,003 18,123

60,373 56,823

B T A& #3,920,00050( —ZF — PO & ¢
3,880,000 0 ) KA EXEZ &
BB KR RS MBI KRIEET ]
R—FERRE S ERELHE -

FEW R ME YR BRI E R B
AERNRBGRR (EHBRREERS) - &
RREARORESIITLT

All debtors, deposits and prepayments of the Group, apart
from certain utility deposits totalling $3,920,000 (2014:
$3,880,000), are expected to be recovered or recognised as

an expense within one year.

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors
(net of allowance for doubtful debts), based on the invoice
date, with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the

reporting period:

—E-RfF —Z—F

2015 2014

Fx Fr

$'000 $'000

1,831 1,892

=t—Fh+H 327 312
h+—=—8N\+H 91 to 180 days - 20
2,158 2,224

AEEEBETETHHEXSEEAR
TREHE - AEENE TRREEBHED
BENF=THELTHANEEN -

RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group's sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
The Group also grants credit terms of 30 to 75 days to certain
customers to which the Group provides catering services.



15 BRI EMERR(Z)

(b) JESRME A FE U BR X
FEME B 8k 4R & Hh AR AR E K FE UL BR SRR
RO

15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

—E-ILf —E-EF

2015 2014

T T+

$'000 $'000

JEHEAERE Neither past due nor impaired 1,809 1,875
B —E A Less than 1 month past due 159 321
BE—E=={AA 1 to 3 months past due 190 8
ME== <A A 3 to 6 months past due - 20
349 349

2,158 2,224

BRI EN YRR TR
BREBNEREREPR -

BB HIE FEIR (B A FE M AR SRR - =R B
AEBRARIEBERN —RBIULE
F-ERERS  RIEBENEER AN
EEEARIWEBE - MARERDEE
AR REURE - PTIAEZARL IR RRRE
B o ARBU LG LERMETH K
Hian o

16 RITHERMAL

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

16 Bank deposits and cash

—E-hF —ZT—YF

2015 2014

T T

$'000 $'000

RITIF Deposits with banks 233,507 270,045

IRITERAE S Cash at bank and in hand 185,515 56,013
RARERERMTHRS Cash and cash equivalents in the

MBS ZEY consolidated cash flow statement 419,022 326,058
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17 FEMIRBRIHE R

17 Trade and other payables

—E-fEF —Z—[UF

2015 2014

T T

$'000 $'000

FEITER XA E T B Creditors and accrued expenses 267,470 244,342
B R IEFLREW A Receipts in advance and deferred income 23,188 20,370
PTHE & @ T B (M 5E24(a) i) Derivative financial instruments (note 24(a)(iii)) 78 252
BREESES Rental deposits received 236 343
290,972 265,307

BrTE THERZKEBERELERASGG
7,412,000t ( — & — PO 4 : 7,229,000
TC)AN - T EAth FE S BR Bk R H M FE AT
RIEEHER —FRE B ERBLA
HAR—FRNEE -

FEARTBR XA E A FE N B 3R IR % A
STEREMERR S MERRSHANE
BRAOMTIT

All of the other trade and other payables, apart from certain
receipts in advance and deferred income totalling $7,412,000
(2014: $7,229,000) are expected to be settled or recognised
as income or are repayable within one year.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of
the end of the reporting period:

- —Z-mE

2015 2014

T T+t

$'000 $'000

=Z=4F 1 to 30 days 86,944 81,148
=t—Eh+H 31 to 90 days 454 172
h+—=Z=—8/N\+H 91 to 180 days 61 3,014
—BA+—Z=//"tAH 181 to 365 days 104 785
—FPA Over one year 668 681
88,231 85,800

1 28 RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



18 SMITHR 18 Bank loans
RZE—RAF=A=+—H " RBITEXK At 31 March 2015, the bank loans were repayable as follows:
BERFRHMT
—E-4fF —T-mEF
2015 2014
Frx Tt
$'000 $'000
—FRIHEENTHERN Current portion of term loans due
BNERER for repayment within one year 4,387 9,852
—FEEBEENTHER Term loans due for repayment after one year:
——FREMEA — After 1 year but within 2 years 3,053 4,228
—MFERERFRA — After 2 years but within 5 years 3,583 6,389
—hF®’ — After 5 years - 448
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 6536 EC]
RITEF AR Total bank loans 11,023 20,917
R-_ZE—RAF=ZA=+—H " RBITEXK At 31 March 2015, the bank loans were secured as follows:
FITERAT ¢
—E-HEF —ZT—OF
2015 2014
Fr F
$000 $'000
RITER Bank loans
—HHEA — Secured - 15,237
— KA — Unsecured 11,023 5,680
11,023 20,917
R-ZZE—NE=A=+—H BHTEXR As at 31 March 2014, certain bank loans were secured by
EAEEER - RNZE—RF=A= charges on properties. As at 31 March 2015, these bank loans
+—H ARAEEHEEZSTRTE have been fully repaid and no other bank loan was secured by
T WEHMBITERUAREEMESE charges on properties of the Group.
R o
REBNIBHORITERBEFAERETT Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
BRAMEIKRK L ROZL)1E - FTiA1E fulfilment of covenants relating to the Group's statement of
B WEROFERNESREETTIIR financial position ratios, as are commonly found in lending
BERLZHR - MAEBEREZY EH arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
FRREBBEIREEE AEEEST to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
HEERG MIBT2E Y - become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its

compliance with these covenants.
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18

19

20

MITER(E)
AEBERRBE SR RN BHNH
F24@)NIN)c RZE—RAF=ZA=+—
B BEEREACHAGEERENR
W(ZT—UF &) -

EREHEF
REBIZBEB(RHMEARSFEE
BIYKIARTE + BIREEBUEBIEN IR
EAEAMNES  RUBEMMAES:
E([aELETE]) - BESFTE 22—
BRTHFGRARETE - ABLMZTA
B - REREBESHE  BEXMNEES
EBEEMRBEABENS%MHBTES T
EWEHHEE  BEFANMABAE LR A
30,00070( =& — PO 4F : 25,0007C ) °
HAGARFRARTESFTEIF -

AEBEZTBASMEEERNREBRE
B EBERTBE HEE KR E R
RIRETEIBREE

DHSBERHLURGSERNHES
R-ZZE——FNALH  AREKILC
ZE_FEREFE( _ZT_FER
#EE D TRRBERB-ZT——F8
gt 8 —F ——FEhEsrall) -
HREHMRILE - —FT - FRERER S
TR BRLERE  EREREREA
R ARTTIE 2 AN AR B

R-T——FEREEAT  EFE
ERNBEAFINAKRENESR  EF
(BRIFATEFTRBIULIFATES )L
EAIR B A R AT EREEFE R A A
BMABERRBEE  URBARER
- HERISER T =ZBFNERR

F(ONBRERTESE AR
BRBERAROBOUWHE  (DRE
EBREEETEMAAEEXAERR

P B BB R TR RS T U8
RNVRHEE - BEEBHETALRE
BAEORERIEE W R TSN - RERIESH B
3 4 5 R AR 7162 B BT B 4% 7 ) R I
HIR - #A ABEEESHERERES
AR RE B -

RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

18

19

20

Bank loans (continued)

Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk
are set out in note 24(a)(ii). As at 31 March 2015, none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached
(2014: None).

Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of $30,000 (2014: $25,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

Equity-settled share-based transactions

On 7 September 2011, the Company terminated the 2002
Option Scheme (the “2002 Option Scheme"”) and adopted
the 2011 Option Scheme (the “2011 Option Scheme”) on the
same date. As a result of the termination, no further options
may be granted under the 2002 Option Scheme but the
options that have been granted and remained outstanding as
of that date under such scheme remain effective.

Under the 2011 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any employee, Director (including
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director) or officer of any member of the Group or any related
trust or company to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price which shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and (iii)
the nominal value of a share. Save as determined by the Board
and provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before an
option can be exercised under the share option scheme. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.




20 SR EMLRNEBERMEZR(Z)
FA - RE_ZFT——FERETIER
100,000 BE B R 18 B K%K - BR

BEIASN - S EARIE —F ——

IR E A B -

AT RESFERTBREN]
- TEBRESEBEE MY

=
Ea

FRERRERT

20 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)
During the year, 100,000 options were granted and
subsequently became lapsed under the 2011 Option Scheme.
No other options were granted under the 2011 Option
Scheme.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical
delivery of shares:

K¥H BREHE BEFRX BRETFI9E R
Average
Number of contractual
Date granted options  Vesting conditions life of options
KT ESBAGE -
Options granted to Directors:
- R=FEThFOANE 1,000,000 AR-—F-—FTFEOA—H=E 7.0%F
—E—R"E=ZA=1+—H
HEAD BETTHE
— on 8 April 2009 1,000,000  Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years

— on 1 March 2010

BT EBHBEE

Options granted to employees:

- RZZEThFIANA

— on 8 April 2009

during the period
from 1 April 2010
to 31 March 2016

160,000 AIR=ZT——F—A—HZE 6.84F
—F < Ft-A=+-8
BN TETTE

160,000  Exercisable in five tranches 6.8 years

during the period
from 1 January 2011
to 31 December 2016

560,000 AR=-Z—ZFMA—HZE 7.0
—E—R"F=A=+—H
HRA D R ETTE

560,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years

during the period
from 1 April 2010
to 31 March 2016
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20 LIS REMLIRIGSEROXH ()
(a) A TNRESFER T B IRFM %
- BEBRESEBEERIMERDE

20 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical

g () delivery of shares: (continued)
R¥H BREHE BEEX BRETISEHNHER
Average
Number of contractual
Date granted options  Vesting conditions life of options
- RZZE——F-R+"H 40,000 AR=T——F-A+RH=E 5.5
—T—+HF-A+EHAH
HiE A D BHEITTHE
— on 16 February 2011 40,000 Exercisable in five tranches 5.5 years
during the period
from 16 February 2012
to 15 February 2017
- R=F——FAHNE 480,000 FR=ZZE——FRANAZE 7.0%F
—Z-hFHANE
HREAS AETT
— on 9 May 2011 480,000  Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years
during the period
from 9 May 2012
to 8 May 2019
- RIZ-—EFEA+—BHE) 100,000 AIR=ZT—HF+A+—HZE 6.0
—ZE-F+A+H
BN LETTE
— on 11 July 2014 (note) 100,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.0 years

during the period
from 11 July 2015
to 10 July 2022

st - ERBHTEZH  ZEERECR
BE_Z-—HF=A=+—HILFE
2EPRA - Bt - ZEBBRREAE
B BWMRALELE -

1 32 RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Note: The options became fully lapsed in the year ended 31 March
2015, before the end of the vesting period of the options. As
a result, the options have no impact to the Group's financial
statements.



20 LIS REMLIRINSEROTH ()
(b) BAHERZR B M FHITEEM T -

20 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

—E-RE —ZT—F
2015 2014

R fBRE T fE e
TEE 4= 118 28

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
FERITE Outstanding at the beginning of the year $7.47 2,240,000 $8.07 3,682,000
FREERT Granted during the year $16.28 100,000 $16.54 100,000
FRNDITE Exercised during the year $7.26 (978,000) $8.07 (946,000)
FRERB Lapsed during the year $16.28 (100,000) $11.73 (596,000)
FERKRITE Outstanding at the end of the year $7.63 1,262,000 $7.47 2,240,000
FRAITE Exercisable at the end of the year $6.42 922,000 $6.42 934,000

AEFEANBITEBRENITEB AN
HEFEHRE B16.4470( —F— N F -
16.717T) °

RZE-—RAF=A=1+—HRITEER
B NEFHTEERT3T(ZF—
P04 : 7.4770) » M ANAEFHEFERE 4

HARR 1. 72 (ZZF—P4F : 2.514) o years).

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
shares options exercised during the year was $16.44 (2014:
$16.71).

The options outstanding at 31 March 2015 had a weighted
average exercise price of $7.63 (2014: $7.47) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1.72 years (2014: 2.51
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21 BB RA TSR

(a) FREMBARRKRIROARBRIAL

21 Income tax in the statement of financial position

position represents:

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial

—E-RF keSS ie
2015 2014
Frx Fit
$'000 $'000
AEEFBFESTHES Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 32,571 27,462
B E TS Provisional Profits Tax paid (20,746) (18,409)
11,825 9,053
AR E RS T B s ek Balance of Profits Tax provision relating
to prior years 927 927
12,752 9,980
K& : Representing:
AR I AR AR 1R Current tax recoverable (72) (54)
FERT AR 18 Current tax payable 12,824 10,034
12,752 9,980
RIEEBER LD E

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



21 BHRRERATHREBR(E)

(b) ERETEHAEEMERE -
BEHESA M BINR R R ETENIA
(BE) /aE0EKTD
—HEFN_ZE-WF=A=+—HIEF

NEHE—T

21 Income tax in the statement of financial position
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014

BT are as follows:
Hid BBEE
REME EETER AR
&fh mELTE RARFER k)
Depreciation
allowances Future
Revaluation in excess benefit
of investment of related of tax
properties depreciation losses Total
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RETHIRERELERE : Deferred tax arising from:
R=ZE—=FmA—H At 1 April 2013 5,925 7,942 (2,045) 11,822
Trig A lzi 5 (Hfiz6(a)) Charged to the consolidated
income statement (note 6(a)) 376 741 114 1,231
ERER Exchange difference - = (26) (26)
R-Z—WNE=A=+—H At 31 March 2014 6,301 8,683 (1,957) 13,027
RZZ—EHEmMA—H At 1 April 2014 6,301 8,683 (1,957) 13,027
TR A EERP (BT N), /5 (Credit)/charged to the consolidated
(KisE6(a)) income statement (note 6(a)) (15) 1,955 1,532 3,472
& 5 =% Exchange difference - - 2) 2)
RN-E—RE=F=+—H At 31 March 2015 6,286 10,638 (427) 16,497
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21 BHRRERATHRBR(E)

(b) CHERELEHRIBREEMALRE (&)

21 Income tax in the statement of financial position
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)

—E-1F —T-mE
2015 2014
Frx T
$'000 $'000
EFBERRRFERREEFIBEEFE  Net deferred tax assets recognised

in the statement of financial position (427) (1,957)

PSRN R ERELTH B R EFS  Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the statement of financial position 16,924 14,984
16,497 13,027

() REERHPELHRIAEE

REBE ARt REt I8 E 854,741,000
T(=ZZ—4F : 61,586,00070) M & T
B B8 A 7] &9 B] H1 Rk B By = 23,350,000
T(=Z—PO4 : 3,142,0007T) R A
BHNEERBEE BAASEER
BR2h BE-_S—RF=-A=+—
B EREEBTIAAEEEBERKE
ERESAHANEEBEEENRKE
FimA o B THREANMHE QRSN
I8 85 4817,590,00000( — & — PO 4F -
24,435,0007C) iR IEF BB AR AF
BEEIN - RIBIRITHE - BEHEE
ENRIERRE -

RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
the cumulative tax losses of $54,741,000 (2014: $61,586,000)
and deductible temporary differences of $3,350,000 (2014:
$3,142,000) of certain subsidiaries as management of the
Group considers that it is not probable as at 31 March 2015
that future taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction.
Other than tax losses of subsidiaries in Mainland China of
$17,590,000 (2014: $24,435,000) which have an expiry
period of 5 years under the PRC tax legislation, these tax
losses do not expire under current tax legislation.



22 HEfi§

22 Provisions

—E-EE —T—NF

2015 2014

T T

$'000 $'000

RERG % Provision for long service payments 10,700 10,940
HES TR EER AN ER Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises 37,728 29,137
48,428 40,077

W BIEEREEEIMNFIE  Less: Amount included under “current liabilities” (11,664) (8,575)
36,764 31,502

(a) REIRG & %H

(@) Provision for long service payments

—EB-HE —T—F

2015 2014

T Tt

$'000 $'000

HREA—H At 1 April 10,940 18,060
Bate (EE) K EEINER Additional/(reversal of) provisions made 839 (6,483)
B AR ERE Provision utilised (1,079) (637)
R=A=+—8~ At 31 March 10,700 10,940

RIEFB(RBIER)  NEEARET
BRATEXAKBERERLERLFNES
HRFEAREN 3B - B8
BTZSEENREFCEFEME
I &R A RIE AR BRI 8| RE MR
BAKE MR ED -  ARELES L
AT EMBRENEE -

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to employees who have
completed at least five years of service with the Group. The
amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary
and years of service, and is reduced by entitlement accrued
under the Group’s retirement schemes that are attributable
to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set
aside any assets to fund the above.
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22 #fF (&)

22 Provisions (continued)

(b) FHESZFTHEIER AL (b) Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises
—E-EF —T—nF
2015 2014
Fx FiT
$'000 $'000
REA—H At 1 April 29,137 23,743
B HERZBINER Additional provisions made 11,749 7,123
BB ERE Provision utilised (3,158) (1,729)
R=A=+—8H At 31 March 37,728 29,137

RIFEZXEFTINEERZNGERR - K
5 BN HERATH & 19 % fE M B IR R AL A2
ERESH - BERAHAREE A -
At - AEES B KEENEENX
RIZEEAEEHEL T 24 -

23 AEMER

(a) A4 A A S M) S EAAR 305 B H 1)
B A B 0 B A B80T 5B
SIEMEAEREB% -

(b) S,
() BRAFEENA LA #ERKRL
K&

Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with
landlords, the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental
premises at the Group's cost upon expiry of the relevant rental
agreements. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate
of the expected reinstatement costs to be incurred.

23 Capital and reserves

(a) The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 80 and 81.

(b) Dividends
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

—Z2-hF —T—mEF
2015 2014
Frx Tt
$'000 $'000
25K NS AR HARE B A% 28.01ll  Interim dividend declared and paid of
(ZZ—p4F : 23.01L) 28.0 cents (2014: 23.0 cents) per share 35,370 28,880
RERE HIERB 2D IR AHIAL S Final dividend proposed after the end of the
FA%52.01(=Z—PU4F - 39.01l)  reporting period of 52.0 cents
(2014: 39.0 cents) per share 65,697 48,931
101,067 77,811

THEERERD IR RK
BRARERSHRERSAE -

RWEEEBRAF
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The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.




23 FEMERZ) 23 Capital and reserves (continued)
(b) RB.(4&) (b) Dividends (continued)

(i) BRE—HKFEE  IRANFEE (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
JER TR EN KL Al R R B attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
B paid during the year

—B-HF —T-mE
2015 2014
i Fr
$'000 $'000
BR E—FREE  WHARFERE Final dividend in respect of the previous financial
RZAFHIREAIR 2 & /%39.01L year, approved and paid during the year,
(ZZ—M4F : 39.01l) of 39.0 cents (2014: 39.0 cents) per share 49,295 48,949
B E—BINERE - WHAEEHE Spedial final dividend in respect of the previous
KA RIR B S &R F L financial year, approved and paid during the
(ZZ—W%F : 10.01l) year, of nil cent (2014: 10.0 cents) per share - 12,551
49,295 61,500
HERE-—ZE-mMEmMAE=+—8t In respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31
FEXRBREmMS £ —4F March 2014, there is a difference of HK$364,000 (year
EUBRRERIFEN RS S A ended 31 March 2013: HK$163,000) between the
FERERSNESE RN =24 final dividend disclosed in the 2014 annual financial
364,000C(BEZE=—_T—=F=A= statements and amount approved and paid during the
+—HIFEE 163,0007T) * 23E(3) year which represents dividends attributable to (i) shares
CAERED  MGVERERZME LA repurchased and (ii) new shares issued upon the exercise
BT B IREmMBETHENES A of share options, before the closing date of the Register of

IR E o Members.
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23 BEMERZ)

23 Capital and reserves (continued)

() &R (c) Share capital
—E-hHF —ZT—OF
2015 2014
REEE +5 avr-4=| x|
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
T T Fh& T
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
EERA : Authorised:
HREEITTERR Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
ERITRBERA : Issued and fully paid:
REA—H At 1 April 125,465 125,465 125,178 125,178
RIRRERAEST2I387TH)  Shares issued under share
&A% (B 5G)) option scheme (note (i) 978 978 946 946
BN )] Shares repurchased (note (ii)) (102) (102) (659) (659)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 126,341 126,341 125,465 125,465

RIREEEERDH

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



23 FEHERZ)

(0 BA(&)
P 5

(i)

RIBIBAE R BB TROR)

AFEENERERFBEARELAQAALE
B A $£978,0008( — & — g 4 :
946,0000%) * {3 /A7,100,00070( =&
— P4 £ : 7,644,0007T ) © H #1978,000
7T( —F — U4 : 946,0007T ) i0 A K&
R Mg T #96,122,000T( — F — M
F 1 6,698,0007T ) AJGE AR 0 & B AR -
1,836,00070( =& — MY 4 : 1,461,000
TT) EAREM 100G E & 5T BUE B
B E AR R EER -

BAXG B
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23 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)
Notes:

0

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
978,000 (2014: 946,000) ordinary shares in the Company at
a consideration of $7,100,000 (2014: $7,644,000), of which
$978,000 (2014: $946,000) was credited to share capital and
the balance of $6,122,000 (2014: $6,698,000) was credited to
the share premium account. $1,836,000 (2014: $1,461,000) has
been transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note

1(r)(ii).

Purchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

=15 R 10 BRI R

HE FRS#E EaE RIEE

Number of Highest Lowest

shares Aggregate price paid price paid

4%/ B#H Month/year repurchased price paid per share per share
Fr
$'000

—ZE—FENA September 2014 50,000 853 $17.10 $17.00

—T—mEFETA October 2014 52,000 881 $17.10 $16.70
102,000 1,734

TP ERMEETEH  ARaHNE
BITRABEEREZSDERN M
HmME - REBEROAIEA DR AH
1,632,0007T X 5,0007T H9 3% B 2 3% 5 B
AEEARE RAEBORDEERT
Mk o

The above repurchased shares were cancelled and the issued
share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of these shares accordingly. The premium and transaction costs
paid on the repurchase of shares of $1,632,000 and $5,000
respectively were charged to the Company’s and the Group's
share premium account.
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23 BEMERZ) 23 Capital and reserves (continued)
() BA(4E) (c) Share capital (continued)
MisE (&) Notes: (continued)
(i) B SR HA AR 8 2R i A A AR 1T (58 A B iR (iiiy Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of
TE(GRR the reporting period
—E-IfF —T—mEF
2015 2014
EESid=! 1T{EHAR 11fEE BREZA ERRES A
Exercisable Exercise Number of Number of
Date granted period price options options
—ZETAFMANA —T-TFNPA—HE $6.26 842,000 1,560,000
—E—ARF=ZA=1t—H
8 April 2009 1 April 2010 to
31 March 2016
—E-ZF=H—H —2——%—[—H% $8.08 80,000 160,000
T R"E+A=+—H
1 March 2010 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016
—2——F - F+"H —T——F-At+XHE $10.90 20,000 40,000
—Z—+tF_A+HAH
16 February 2011 16 February 2012 to
15 February 2017
—T——FHANA —T——FRANAE $10.88 320,000 480,000
—ZE-NFHANE
9 May 2011 9 May 2012 to
8 May 2019
1,262,000 2,240,000
BHEREETEFAEARTRERLF Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
TREBEROER - AEELBEREN share in the Company. Further details of these options are set out
E—HEREN Y BEmERMTT20 - in note 20 to the financial statements.

142 RWEEEBRAF
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(d) FEEHEEMAR
(i) BR17&1E
B HEERENERARSADANA
B EREMBIFE150R F 157 A
FE—NAN—F(REPEARFTEE -

(ii) (B33 (715
EHFERRRETRERNERLN
MR RAMELEMTEINEZESE -
RRABIRBEM FE1(VATE B & 5T EUCR
R P O 5 (4 o

(iii) BN &85
RE-NANANEFEN—HEH K&
ERIZERABER SRR B K E
DA e AR FIEAME A B &R
REEFEBBAARDETERN
HENBBCDIATRFNHAR
8 o

ARABNFABBIARE NN
—H(RBER)FMBRE - REER
ZE—NN—F(REDER) » XRA
A BRI ADIK ©

AT ETHIBRT - AR A ThE
ABA BB S R SRR B
HIE -

(a) PN IR SRS A S 21| HR
MERIME =X

(b) REEMAIEREER M DK
BEEADETRARRNGE
BREVARAD o

/i

(iv) B # e
B AR RERIRM I ()T EA
Bein RERE SRS ETHER -
RAETARREEBRENERL
et RITEHBENAAEE -

23 Capital and reserves (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed
by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s Bye-laws and
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

(i) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of Mainland China operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 1(v).

(ii) Contributed surplus
Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former holding
company of the Group became a subsidiary of the
Company. The excess of the consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company over the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company has been
credited to the Company’s contributed surplus.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus of
the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

(iv) Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 1(r)(ii).
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23 FEHMERZ)
(d) BB EBENRSR (&)

23 Capital and reserves (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

144

(v) LHFIERYHIE N G
THMEEYNEGHFERRRE
FERNMEBEAREYXFET
BEMEENDAEBEZS -

(vi) E BRI R 5 RFEE
RZE—RF=ZA=+—8 " a/#t
DEFALNBETRENEERE
£297,132,00000( — & — 4 4 :
281,222,0007T) - EEN R EHE
RIEEZRD IR AREREFH52.01U
(ZZ—MHF : KR EEFR39.0
il ) - %65,697,00070( = & — Y
F 1 48,931,0007T) ° 15 L B

(e) EXRELRR

AEEEEEANTIEANESHEER
BRREmRE - T EAEME B
K A EE fn E B A RUBFE A A TRRC AR
MERE  #ERKRREHDR -

R-ZE—RAF=A=+—0 A£H
4818 F)#11,023,000( —F — PO 4F -
20,917,0007%) ° W4 RZZE—RHF
—A=+—H aBLREIXEER
EREARAFMFENLE) B1.8%
—E—PF :39%)c R-T—FHF
ZA=1+—8  AEENTEHERMR
% &80 A $£419,022,000T( ZFE — WM
F 1 326,058,0007T) °

RE BB & E Pt MER L EARR
B NEEFERSERLL R 8% KA
= B ER [ ¥R B RS 42 B AR B B B AR
&2 EES T - I A AT R A &R AR
MR EARRBIELFE -
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(v) Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises the
fair value change arising on the revaluation of property
held for own use upon transfer to investment property.

(vi) Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $297,132,000 (2014: $281,222,000). After
the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed a
final dividend of 52.0 cents (2014: 39.0 cents) per share
amounting to $65,697,000 (2014: $48,931,000). The
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period.

(e) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

As 31 March 2015, the Group has total borrowings amounting
to $11,023,000 (2014: $20,917,000). The gearing ratio,
representing the ratio of total borrowings to the total share
capital and reserves of the Group was 1.8% (2014: 3.9%)
at 31 March 2015. The Group had time deposits and cash
balances as at 31 March 2015 amounting to $419,022,000
(2014: $326,058,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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24 Financial risk management and fair value

(@) Financial risk management and fair value
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(i) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, bank deposits and cash at bank and
other financial assets. Management has a credit policy in
place and the expenses to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that catering services are
provided to customers with a sound credit history. Sales
to retail customers are made in cash, Octopus or via major
credit cards. At the end of the reporting period, there
were no significant concentrations of credit risk.

The Group’s time deposits and cash balances and
other financial assets are normally placed with financial
institutions of high credit quality.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Company
in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 26, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 15.
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24 ERMEAREERAAREE)
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24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk
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Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’s board of directors when the borrowings
exceed certain pre-determined levels of authority.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirement and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's non-derivative and derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.

For term loans subject to repayment on demand clauses
which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the contractual
repayment schedule and, separately, the impact to the
timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
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24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

—2-1F
2015
HEES

gk —E5E MEAL
FHSHE REAH —FR BMER BEFR RERE

Total More than ~ More than

contractual 1yearbut 2 yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted Within less than lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
i r r T Tr Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
FITER Bank loans 11,023 11,335 4,548 3,139 3,648 -
BliEe ke Rental deposits received 2,001 2,001 236 24 1,741 -
ERERANEER Creditors and accrued expenses 267,470 267,470 267,470 - - -
fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 78 82 70 12 - -
280,572 280,888 272,324 3,175 5,389 -

eSS
2014
BEOES

FRERE —ENE WEL L
REEE mERE —£R BRER BRER RENE

Total More than More than

contractual Tyearbut 2 yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted Within less than less than More than
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
Fr Fr Fr Fr Tr T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FITER Bank loans 20917 21,998 10292 4,519 6,737 450
Bl eEe Rental deposits received 1,711 1,711 343 208 1,160 -

ENEERNESER Creditors and accrued expenses 244,342 244,342 244,342 -

fTAESRTA Derivative financial instruments 252 283 200 71 12 =
267,222 268,334 255,177 4,798 7,909 450
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24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk
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The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from bank
loans. All bank loans bear interest at market rates.

For the bank loans, when appropriate and at times of
interest rate uncertainty or volatility, interest rate swaps
may be used to assist in the Group’s management of
interest rate exposure. The effective interest rate of the
Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2015 is 1.8% (2014:
2.6%) per annum.

Interest rate swaps, denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
have been entered into to achieve an appropriate mix
of fixed and floating rate exposure consistent with the
Group's policy. At 31 March 2015, the Group had an
interest rate swap with a notional contract amount of
$4,000,000 (2014: $12,347,000) to fix the interest rate of
a bank borrowing so as to reduce the impact of interest
rate fluctuation.

The swap matures over the next 1.5 years, matching the
maturity of the related loan (see note 18) and has fixed
swap rate of 2.74%. The net fair value of swap entered
into by the Group at 31 March 2015 was $78,000 (2014:
$252,000). This amount is recognised as derivative
financial instruments and is included within “Trade and
other payables” (note 17).

At 31 March 2015, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group's profit after tax by approximately $32,000
(2014: $39,000).
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24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)
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The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit after tax that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at
the end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expenses or income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through cash at bank and other financial assets that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States
dollars and Renminbi. The Group ensures that the net
exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short term imbalances.

The following tables detail the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to foreign currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period. Differences resulting from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group’s presentation currency are excluded.
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24 SMEARERRARBEE) 24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) ERIEREERAAEBEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iv) B E bz (&) (iv) Currency risk (continued)
SN BB EERE (UBHETIR)

Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-RHEF —E—OF
2015 2014

Ep N E AR

United United

States States
dollars Renminbi dollars Renminbi
Fr Fr T Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Hih &b EE Other financial assets - 8,924 - 16,220
RITIFRANE & Bank deposits and cash 24,441 184,726 25,625 110,467
24,441 193,650 25,625 126,687

RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iv) Currency risk (continued)

The following table indicates the change in the Group's
profit after taxation and retained profits that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, as Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to United States dollar, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong
Kong dollar exchange rate.

—E-IF —TmF
2015 2014

BRBEBENR R A5t 1% 05 A K2

ERLHA - REBEFE fEx T REBEFIE

(T&) m/ ) (&) o/ Cr)

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/  (decrease) in

(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after

in foreign taxation and in foreign  taxation and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates profits rates profits

T T

$'000 $'000

ARE 5.0% 9,683 5.0% 6,334
Renminbi (5.0)% (9,683) (5.0)% (6,334)
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24 EMEAREERAABRE(E)
() eRERERRAREBEGE)
) 2A1EE

NABERER
TREJHAGEERHFSEHAREZERE
HEMFENEMRIARAEBE:
ZEEMTACR (BB B®RE
RRDF3% [ A4 EEFE |57
EN=EAAEBEER AKEEZ
BRIA NS ETDEPTR AN B AER
AEREENEEN  EMEERQ
REEFEHEMERBNER

— E-ERHE: REAFER
B AE(AEREELBERE
ERMEEEMSHREHER
B)RABLRAEE -

— F_ERMLE: ERFE_EAE
ANEAIREF —EROATER
BAB)LREEATAERE
ANERFFEAAEE - TAEHR
BABEEERRTSHENEA
e

— BZERGHE KABEATAE
KREANERFEAAEIE-

24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(v) Fair values

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

—E-RF —T—mFE
2015 2014
EZBR FER
AREE RAEE
DRER FTE AREE e
Level 2 Level 2
fair value fair value
Fair value  measurement Fair value measurement
Fr Fr T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
REDNAEENE Recurring fair value measurements
BE Assets
—RHINES L] ~ Forward foreign exchange contract 89 89 = =
—[RAEEEMEEZIE - Principal protected structured note - - 7,394 7,394
af& Liabilities
—PTHEERmIA — Derivative financial instruments (78) (78) (252) (252)
11 11 7,142 7,142
KIFEEEERAA
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() eRERERERAREBEGE)
v) 2R EEE)

24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(v) Fair values (continued)

NABEERE)
REBEE-_ZT—HFA-_T—NF=
A=+—HIEFE YE2@MT A
ESARBEBRZEHBEME
%o AEENBEREEAREBERE
H2EEHBERARE P EERE
RBEBE

F_ERARBEFEMANMGE
FEMEAE

BB R TEMINES A L
EEREETREABRRETLA
EHMELL  FBSHRORS
RANT - BB I AN AL EE
st -

PTESRMIANAABERRER
MHF R RENH KRR TS
MEE AEERKA-_T—1F
A=+ BREBRTBEFREDN
FIRMGE  BMEHMEENEE
EBRFBETELBITE  FAAF
RANF0.4%FE0.7% (ZF—PU4F -
0.4%%E1.0%) °

FEAABEIENERTANR
RfEE

AEBIZRAL BEHKAARNE
MIANEESHE HEAR_-T—
EFER-_FT-NF=A=+t—HBHW
RABEDHINK -

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, there
were no transfers between financial instruments in
different levels. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of structured note and forward foreign
exchange contract are derived from the fair value of the
underlying instrument by using discounted cash flow
analysis taking the credit risk and the exchange rate of
USD against RMB into account.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is
determined by discounting the future cash flows of the
contracts at the current market interest rates. The Group
uses the interest rate curve of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR") as of 31 March 2015 plus an
adequate constant credit spread to discount derivative
financial instruments. The interest rates used are 0.4% —
0.7% (2014: 0.4% - 1.0%).

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2015 and
2014,
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24 SHEARERERARMKREE)
(b) €@ T AKFEA

ess otherwise indicated)

24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(b) Categories of financial instruments

—E-RfF —ZT—yF
2015 2014
T T
$000 $'000
SEMEE Financial assets
Hib B E Other financial assets
— BB EEHIRE — Held-to-maturity investment 8,835 8,826
—ERAREBEFABEN — Financial instrument at fair
ST HE value through profit or loss 89 7,394
B R FE U R Loans and receivables
— U BRF IR S — Debtors and deposits 91,840 89,748
—RITERAMIR S — Bank deposits and cash 419,022 326,058
510,862 415,806
519,786 432,026
—E-RF —E—uF
2015 2014
Fr Fr
$'000 $'000
SRas Financial liabilities
BAREBE ABEN Financial instruments at fair
SRT A value through profit or loss 78 252
FREE SHP AN SR AN At amortised cost or cost
—BlkiEeRe — Rental deposits received 2,001 1,711
— B ERFAERTE A — Creditors and accrued expenses 267,470 244,342
—RITER — Bank loans 11,023 20,917
280,494 266,970
280,572 267,222
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(b)

ﬁd%
A —_E-—AF=A=+—HRENHmX
RIEM BT NI EFBHE ARER
T

25 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2015 not

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

—E-EF —T—UF

2015 2014

Frx Fir

$'000 $'000

EHEED) Contracted for 12,910 12,087
EREERTA Authorised but not contracted for 12,490 18,867
25,400 30,954

R-BE—NE=/F=+—HAREMNNE
RAEYER - BIE—2 A %7,891,0007T
FFE  WEHARRSINTHOHNEER
BRzBA NR_TE—RAEF=-A=+—
B Y%A W E T R E R HE A

£ o

R-B—REZA=+—A  RETT
BRI B0 TR BAE L JE VRS

Included in capital commitments outstanding at 31
March 2014 was an amount of $7,891,000 for the future
development of the central food processing plant and no
capital commitments was outstanding as at 31 March 2015

for such purpose.

(b) At 31 March 2015, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties

MEfRERENT - are payable as follows:
—E-IF —T—nF
2015 2014
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
—ER Within 1 year 279,412 281,729
—FRERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 337,507 382,762
hFE After 5 years 605 24,780
617,524 689,271

REFBNGLHERAIIME - B
HME—RVNTEP—FENF XHEE
RRIBEDERED  BRFTE KK
t’]‘fé%ﬁﬁﬁm HENKEBRTZERE
Wiﬁﬂ%miﬂﬂi Yﬁ*ﬂiﬂzka
%%EW%IZO% “E—DF 10%E
20%) B REAEENEERET ' B
TEEELMERRA -

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
nine years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased to
reflect market rentals. The contingent rent payments are
determined based on 10% to 20% (2014: 10% to 20%) of
the turnover over the base rents and are excluded from the

information disclosed above.
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25 &iE(E)

25 Commitments (continued)
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REBEHHEBLLHEDE - R _T—
AEZA=+—8 BRETUEGRND
FAFA L TEHA7E B 18 AT ER A9 B 1K 5 T 3K
A 4 %8 /54,456,0007T( — F — 0 4 :
1,014,0007T) °

26 XBAR

RZE-—RAF=A=+—H ARQAA
HETE2EMNBARESHRBERK
HiRITHAEEMRRITELER -

RIBER  EFREBREBERABERE
HARRIERENATEMETK - R
SR ARRIBBZERBERSED
RABBAFMENBARAREIRIMNE
FR{=E%71,934,000T( — & — U4 :
82,077,0007T) * EHFZIERKEE H
HREE -

AKX B 4 A A% R IR R SR A AR T W
A RAZEARBEEXAEHA
E MBARBERHER -
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26

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group.
The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be
received under non-cancellable subleases at 31 March 2015
were $4,456,000 (2014: $1,014,000).

Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2015, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period
under the guarantee is the amount of the facilities drawn
down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantee,
being $71,934,000 (2014: $82,077,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably
measured and there is no transaction price.
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EXHABAXS
RAMBERREMEDAEENZS M
RERRSN  AEBETTT THIE AR

5

IEanM 7R TR - RESR B I A B OB
EREMNARBEZNRIRA - B B5H
BREAIBTRAIR(2EHMEES D))

EARFERN  ARA—KMBRRIM
HEEBEBRAR(FHEDEA—IEY
¥ -ERERABGLEREREKEKE
2EERBEAE W BRBEESR
FRMNEE - FRELENELSTEA
1,680,0007t( —ZZ — U4 : 1,680,000
JT) °

EAFEN  ARA—RHBRRRE
YERAR(ELNDBEA—EDE-
37 FiPengto International Limited (F
NERBEERBBERERNERE
REENRRERER o I EF
LEREREBEUNES - FAEEMAE
% X i 52,539,000t ( = F — M 4 :
2,493,0007T) °

(d) K EMRADPBRAERBER ZHEM S

At Eb)R(BEBEE T X HER L
MRADFVAABREN T ERER
5 o REBEDRBCEMRRNE14AE
MREEETEREANFHERERS
—HiR{EHIREE -
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Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid
to the Company’s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total
remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from New Champion International Limited (“New
Champion”). New Champion is a company wholly beneficially
owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and his family members.
In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a director of New
Champion. Rental expenses incurred during the year
amounted to $1,680,000 (2014: $1,680,000).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from Hibony Limited (“Hibony"). Hibony is a
company beneficially owned by Pengto International Limited
(a company beneficially owned by a trust of which Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object). In addition, Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung is a director of Hibony. Rental expenses incurred
during the year amounted to $2,539,000 (2014: $2,493,000).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected
transactions

The related party transactions in respect of (b) and (c) above
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the section
“continuing connected transactions” of the Report of the
Directors.

157




S B
Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIEZBFEHR - TRPHYLUEEZR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

28 AFIBEMBEEH
(a) ARIBEMEMR AR

28 Company-level financial information

(@) Company-level statement of financial position

ZE-RF —T—EF
2015 2014
bz Fr Tt
Note $'000 $'000
FREBEE Non-current assets
NI OL: F Interests in subsidiaries 391,279 408,721
REFRIBEE Deferred tax assets 427 534
391,706 409,255
REVEE Current assets
7 Lt B R L A U R Trade and other receivables 87,712 170,224
RITIFRNE & Bank deposits and cash 428 388
88,140 170,612
REBEE Current liabilities
JE A BR FAN EL At A5 7R Trade and other payables 45,451 166,836
REBEEFE Net current assets 42,689 3,776
EEFRE NET ASSETS 434,395 413,031
BARMEEE Capital and reserves 28(b)
&N Share capital 126,341 125,465
HiE Reserves 308,054 287,566
EREE TOTAL EQUITY 434,395 413,031

EZeR _T-RAFAA-t=AK%Y

HERFRIEE M o

ERE

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

HITERE

Executive Chairman

RIREEEERDH
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Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

23 June 2015.

BRE R
Chan Chee Shing
TTIABE

Chief Executive Officer



28 AFIREMBRR(E)
(b) AR EEREHEEHE

TREIIARBE R AR B D R

28 Companye-level financial information (continued)

(b) Company-level statement of changes in equity

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end of

the reporting period are set out below:

BA BRVEE AR ARRE  REER ek
Share Share  Contributed Capital Retained
capital premium surplus reserve profits Total
MzE Fr T Tr Fr Fr T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R-E—=%WA—H At 1 April 2013 125,178 4,458 28,182 5,112 238,363 401,293
TEEBHERRE Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - (61,500) (61,500)
AEEEERNKE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)i) - - - - (28,880) (28,880)
REERA Profit for the year = - - ~ 105,057 105,057
R B277R0M(D  Shares issued under
share option scheme 23(c)i) 946 6,698 - - - 7,644
B1ER Issue expenses - (48) _ _ _ (48)
ISR EEH RN Equity-settled share-based
R AERNZ S transactions 23(c)i) - 1,461 - (1,446) - 15
BB & R {n Repurchase of own shares
-BffEE ~ par value paid 23(c)i) (659) - = = = (659)
—BREENR KA — premium and transaction
costs paid 23(c)(ii) - (9,891) - - - (9,891)
RZZE-ME=A=1+—H At31March2014 125,465 2,678 28,182 3,666 253,040 413,031
RZE-WFWA—A At 1 April 2014 125,465 2,678 28,182 3,666 253,040 413,031
TEEBHERRE Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - (49,295) (49,295)
AEEEERNKE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)i) - - - - (35,370) (35,370)
REERA Profit for the year = - - ~ 100575 100,575
RIERER R 21277R0M(D  Shares issued under
share option scheme 23(c)i) 978 6,122 - - - 7,100
B7ER Issue expenses - (51) = = = (51)
IR AEH AN Equity-settled share-based
RIDAERNZ S transactions 23(c)i) - 1,836 - (1,692) - 144
BB & (D Repurchase of own shares
-ENEE — par value paid 23(c)(ii) (102) = = - - (102)
—BARENR KA — premium and transaction
costs paid 23(c)(ii) - (1,637) - - = (1,637)
R=Z-RFE=A=+—H At31March2015 126,341 8,948 28,182 1,974 268,950 434,395
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29

30

REMEFRAESER
EENREMBERREZ DR KA
B BRAFBEIINME23(0b)

EHGERNKRERE_S—AF=A
E+—BHIEFEENMHEET - HER
MR FREERHE
BEAMBHRRNNER  HESHMD
SERMBEERE_T A =-A=
T—HIEFERRER - THREEARR
R KAEMERT M ER] o iF LB
BRETIIRIGERAEEBRRIER -

29

30

Non-adjusting event after the reporting period
After the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 23(b).

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 March 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant

to the Group:

EUTHE

H 2 BB
EREEES
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BB EHEADE1SRERT [ ESEN - REMzZATE - 1ES A —T—mE+A—H
Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions 1 July 2014
(BRI HREEIDNFERE(CE—ZFE -2 —FEFH) —Z—mE+A—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle 1 July 2014
(BRI REERDNFESRE(CE——FE_T—=FEFH) —T—mE+A—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle 1 July 2014
(BERBFBHREEADNFERE(CE——FE -2 NFEFH) —Z—RE—HA—H

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle 1 January 2016

(CEREEHERDE 165 MEIBRIER] [ AT & #1575 %6055 |
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation

T R"F—-A—H
1 January 2016
and amortisation

(BRMBREERDFE 1SR FEFFEAIHIHA ]

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

—T—+5—H—H
1 January 2017

(BB EHRELERDES 2/ TA ]
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

—E-N\F—-H—H
1 January 2018

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what

A EERHE S SR E V)0 e A AT

EIMTEET 2 - DB RI AL ANEBEE the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
EREMNELEIETeRErEG80 period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
FEIRE o adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
RPEEBERAT
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TEME QA

Principal Subsidiaries

NAEH

ML
RURCE

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

BE1T/
HMERFEE

FARFEHR S
Bat

Particulars of issued/ Percentage of shares held

TREHR

Name of company operation registered capital by the Company Principal activity
Hi# %
Direct Indirect
BEHERERAT 0 2B dn - 100% WERE
Benley Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ARERINEREBR AR B 10,0008 17 - 100% REER
Fairwood (Shenzhen) Development Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment holding
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* RBSARES/ BB 579,437 S 100% - REER
EfE0.01%ET
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* The British Virgin 579,437 shares of Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong US$0.01 each
Fairwood Consolidated RBERRES /B 1REE1F TR 100% - REER
Investments Limited*
Fairwood Consolidated The British Virgin 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
Investments Limited* Islands/Hong Kong
ARERE(EB)ER AR EE 251 - 100% RAREMR
Fairwood Fast Food (Management) Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Restaurant licences
holding
AREREERAH BE 100 ETBARR579,4378 - 100% B EERER
BREERITRN
Fairwood Fast Food Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares and Operation of a chain of
579,437 non-voting fast food restaurants
deferred shares
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited* RRERRES /B 1REE1ET - 100% FABR
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited* The British Virgin 1 share of US$1 Trademark holding
Islands/Hong Kong
FRERBRAR EE 28R4 - 100% NERE
Great Choice Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
VEERARRA BB 28R MH - 100% MERE
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
AZERERAT 9 2B dn - 100% WERE
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
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FEMBELE

Principal Subsidiaries

NAEH

ML
RIARBE

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

2817/
AR

FRFFEBR S
Batt

Particulars of issued/ Percentage of shares held

TREHR

Name of company operation registered capital by the Company Principal activity
Hi i
Direct Indirect
KFERBRAR EE 24 - 100% NERE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
EEERBRAR EE 2xAxin - 100% MERE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ERERBRAR EE 24 - 100% NERE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RIARERBEERDF A 7,700,000%7¢ - 100% REBHRER
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast Food Limited* Mainland China US$7,700,000 Operation of a chain of
fast food restaurants
ERERERAR BE 2%A1R - 100% NERE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ARBRERAA BB 21D = 100% MERE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RERRBRAR BE 2%A1R - 100% NERE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
REERBRAR EE 2R - 100% WERE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
HEERARAR EE 2R - 100% NERE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
EHBRERAA BB 21D = 100% MERE
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment

* ALRBWIFREFHG AN EEAEX *

(a) W_E—RHF=A=+—H"

FHES

B ET RN =TSP AZ I B 1 B B 75 ¥
KO RIMEERRR A RENRE XB LA
BEFEN8% (ZZE—MNEF :8%) R

6%(—Z—P0F : 8%) °

(b) BB AR EERD ETEERA -

RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Companies not audited by KPMG

(a) At 31 March 2015, the financial statements of the subsidiaries

not audited by KPMG reflect total turnover and total net assets
constituting approximately 8% (2014: 8%) and 6% (2014:
8%) respectively of the related consolidated totals.

(b) None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.



AEBAFHHEE

Five-Year Group Financial Summary
(LAEHFIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-RF ZT—MF ZT—=F T—=F Z=—F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
F Tt Tt v Tt
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
5 Results:
e Turnover 2,244,885 2,037,719 1,929,244 1,829,456 1,665,881
AR R Profit from operations 180,171 137,055 165,950 151,510 147,249
BE A Finance costs (70) (785) (865) (1,756) (2,100)
Sz Ib v Profit before taxation 180,101 136,270 165,085 149,754 145,149
FTi5%% Income tax (36,134) (28,659) (25,616) (19,374) (20,907)
AAEERRE Profit attributable to equity
i tapragll shareholders of the Company 143,967 107,611 139,469 130,380 124,242
EERERE: Assets and liabilities:
EEE&E Fixed assets 383,011 403,968 433,471 401,982 400,039
[EE Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
EfHeEE Rental deposits paid 51,470 51,048 46,892 44,721 42,245
Hih &t EE Other financial assets 8,835 8,826 - 2,329 2,334
EEFIIEEE Deferred tax assets 427 1,957 2,045 780 663
TRENEE Current assets 537,356 421,149 378,594 355,950 334,629
EEHEE Total assets 982,100 887,949 862,003 806,763 780,911
mEIBE Current liabilities (319,847) (293,768) (273,518) (244,408) (250,583)
FERBAE Non-current liabilities (62,089) (58,919) (68,786) (61,516) (65,287)
EERE Net assets 600,164 535,262 519,699 500,839 465,041
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AEEFFiENREYZ
Investment Properties Held by the Group

R-_E—RAF=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2015

i B

Location

REEAR

Existing use

HEH

Term of lease

il

wYIT

W=

5 E
EEER 8
281035 104055 A4
Shop Unit Nos. 1035-1040 on Level 2
Lowu Commercial Plaza
Guangchang South Road
Luohu District

Shenzhen

PRC

Rz
Shops

]

Medium-term

RWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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